
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

CARMEL AREA WASTEWATER DISTRICT  

 

Regular Board Meeting 

3945 Rio Road, Carmel, CA 93923  

 
February 28, 2019 

Thursday 
9:00AM 

 

 

 
 
 

 

              1



List of Common Acronyms

ACWA Assoc of California Water Agencies MG/L Milligrams per Liter
AF Acre Feet MGD Million Gallons per Day
APWA American Public Works Assoc MLSS Mixed Liquor Suspended Solids
AWWA American Water Works Assoc MLVSS Mixed Liquor Volatile Suspended Solids
BFE Base Flood Elevation (FEMA) MOU Memorandum of Understanding
BMP Best Management Practice MPN Most Probable Number (of coliform organisms)
BOD Biochemical Oxygen Demand MPWMD Monterey Peninsula Water Management District
BTU British Thermal Units MSL [Elevation above] Mean Sea Level
C&I Calcium & Ion NEC National Electric Code
Cal OES California Office of Emergency Services NELAC National Environmental Laboratory Accreditation Council
Cal/OSHA California Occupational Safety and Health Administration NEPA National Environmental Policy Act
CalPERS California Public Employees Retirement System NMFS National Marine Fisheries Serivce (NOAA)
CASA California Association of Sanitation Agencies NOAA National Oceanic & Atmospheric Administration
CAWD Carmel Area Wastewater District NPDES National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System
CCAMP Central Coast Ambient Monitoring Program NPS Non-Point Source [Pollution]
CCLEAN Central Coast Long Term Environmental Assessment Network NPSHa Net Positive Suction Head Available
CCTV Closed Circuit Television NPSHr Net Positive Suction Head Required
CECs Constituents of Emerging Concern OM&R Operations, Maintenance, and Replacement
CEQA California Environmental Quality Act OSHA Occupational Safety & Health Act
CFR Code of Federal Regulations PBC Pebble Beach Company
CIP Capital Improvement Project/Plan PBCSD Pebble Beach Community Services District
CL2 Chlorine PCB's Polychlorinated Biphenyls
CMMS Computerized Maintenance Mgmt Software PEHP Post Employment Health Plan
CMOM Capacity, Management, Operations &  Maintenance pH Hydrogen Ion Concentration (Potential of Hydrogen)
COD Chemical Oxygen Demand PLC Programmable Logic Controller
CPI Consumer Price Index POTW Publicly Owned Treatment Works
CRFREE Carmel River Floodplain Restoration & Environmental EnhancementPPM Parts per Million
CRWQCB Calif Regional Water Quality Control Board PS Point Source [Pollution]
CSDA California Special District Association PS Pump Station
CSO Combined Sewer Overflow PSI Pounds per Square Inch
CSS Combined Sewer System QA/QC Quality Assurance/Quality Control
CU FT Cubic Feet RAS Return Activated Sludge
CWA Clean Water Act (EPA) RFP Request for Proposals
CWEA California Water Environment Assoc RFQ Request for Qualifications
DAF Dissolved Air Flotation RMP Risk Management Program
DEG Degrees RO Reverse Osmosis
DEIS Draft Environmental Impact Statement (NEPA/EPA) RPM Revolutions per Minute
DHS Department of Health Services RWQCB Regional Water Quality Control Board
DO Dissolved Oxygen SAR Sodium Adsorption Ratio
DWF Dry Weather Flow SBS Sodium Bisulfite
EA Environmental Assessment (NEPA/EPA) SCADA Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition
EFT Electronic Funds Transfer SLR Sea Level Rise
EIS/EIR Environmental Impact Statement/Report SOR Standard Oxygen Requirement
ELAP Environmental Laboratory Accreditation Program SOUR Specific Oxygen Uptake Rate
EPA [U.S.] Environmental Protection Agency SRF State Revolving Loan Fund
ESMP Electronic Self-Monitoring Report SRT Solids Retention Time (same as MCRT)
F/M Food to Microorganism ratio SRV Sewer Relief Valve
FEB Flow Equalization Basin SS Suspended Solids (same as TSS)
FEMA Federal Emergency Management Agency SSMP Sewer System Management Plan
FOG Fats, Oils and Grease SSO Sanitary Sewer Overflow
GAL Gallon SVI Sludge Volume Index
GASB Government Accounting Standards Board SWRCB State Water Resources Control Board 
GPD Gallons per Day TDML Total Maximum Daily Load
HP Horsepower TMP Trans Membrane Pressure 
I/I Infiltration and Inflow TDS Total Dissolved Solids
IPR Indirect Potable Reuse TOC Total Organic Carbon
IRWUG Independent Reclaimed Water Users Group TS/TSS Total Suspended Sollids
IS/MND Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration UV Ultraviolet Treatment
kw Kilowatt  VFD Variable Frequency Drive
kwH Kilowatt hour VS Volatile Solids
LAFCO Local Agency Formation Commission VSS Volatile Suspended Solids
LAMP Local Area Management Plan WAS Waste Activated Sludge
lbs Pounds WDR Waste Discharge Requirements
LIMS Laboratory Information Management Software WEF Water Environment Federation
MCC Motor Control Center WPCF Water Pollution Control Federation
MCRT Mean Cell Retention Time WWTP Waste Water Treatment Plant
MF/RO Microfiltration/Reverse Osmosis

J:\Board Packets\2019\02-28-19 Regular Board Meeting\02-28-2019 Board Binder\02. List of Common Acronyms 02-12-19  

              2



Minutes of the CAWD Special Board meeting held January 31, 2019 – 9:00 a.m. 

1 

 

  
CARMEL AREA WASTEWATER DISTRICT (CAWD)  

REGULAR BOARD MEETING MINUTES  
JANUARY 31, 2019 

 
 

CALL	TO	ORDER	‐	ROLL	CALL	‐ The meeting was called to order at 9:01 a.m.				
	
Present:		 President: Ken White, Directors: Greg D’Ambrosio, Michael Rachel,  
	 Robert Siegfried and Charlotte Townsend 
 
Absent:		 None 
 
Others:	 Barbara Buikema, General Manager, Carmel Area Wastewater District (CAWD) 

 Rachel Lather, Principal Engineer, CAWD 
 Patrick Treanor, Plant Engineer, CAWD 
 Ed Waggoner, Operations Superintendent, CAWD 
 Daryl Lauer, Collections Superintendent, CAWD 
 Domine Barringer, Administrative Assistant/Board Clerk, CAWD 
 Karla Cristi, CMMS-Plant Administrative Coordinator, CAWD 
 Robert Wellington, Wellington Law Offices, CAWD District Legal Counsel 
 Jeffrey B. Froke, Board Director, Pebble Beach Community Services District 

(PBCSD)  
 Mike Niccum, General Manager, PBCSD 
 David Heuck, Executive Vice President & Chief Administrative Officer, Pebble 

Beach Company    
 Rich Larsen, Private Homeowner, Carmel Highlands 

 
   

APPEARANCES,	ORDERS	OF	BUSINESS	&	ANNOUNCEMENTS		
1.		 Appearances/Public	Comments:	 

Public	Comment	No:	1	
Mr. Larsen said that his family moved into their Carmel Highlands house 4 years ago. It is 
located directly across Hwy 1 from the District’s main sewer line.  Mr. Larsen feels it 
should not take 4 years for his connection process.  He asked that CAWD agendize the 
“Larsen Sewer Connection” to get this project moving and to track progress going 
forward.  He understands that CalTrans will need to approve extension of the sewer line 
under the highway.  He said that he will go directly to Local Agency Formation 
Commission (LAFCO) to get annexed to CAWD.  Ms. Lather has provided Mr. Larsen with 
an annexation application.  Director White asked if there are neighboring property 
owners also interested in connecting.  Mr. Larsen explained that lots in this area are a 
couple of acres each and would require extensive trenching.  His neighbors are reluctant 
to connect at this time.  Ms. Buikema apologized for the delay and clarified that although 
LAFCO does not like stand-alone annexations they do not forbid them.  She told him that 

              3



Minutes of the CAWD Special Board meeting held January 31, 2019 – 9:00 a.m. 

2 

 

design plans, completed by an engineering firm, need to be presented to CAWD for 
review and approval.  President White expressed appreciation to Mr. Larsen for his 
attitude and cooperation despite the delays. 
 
Public	Comment	No:	2	
Mr. Niccum said that PBCSD made a final payment, in December, for the CAWD plan 
Operations & Maintenance and Capital costs for prior year.  He expressed dissatisfaction 
and concern since he felt this situation has been an issue for a number of years.  It took 6 
months this year, working with CAWD staff, to clarify cost allocation.  Mr. Niccum gave an 
example of a Board meeting a couple of weeks ago, page 19 of the Minutes, wherein after 
review by PBCSD engineers, he felt false statements had been made about costs for the 
outfall pipe and collection lines.  Mr. Niccum said that this is not an isolated incident and 
asked that cost allocations be done during the public process.  He would like his 
engineers to start participating in CAWD’s Budget Committee meetings and stated that 
both agencies should maintain a good, long term agreement and avoid litigation.  He 
would like to keep working together but feels that PBCSD has not been treated fairly.  Ms. 
Buikema said that PBCSD will be notified and invited to all CAWD Budget Committee 
meetings going in the future.     
 
President White stated that he is sorry for the disappointment, but that perhaps these 
differences of opinion should be discussed during a smaller group meeting.  Director 
D’Ambrosio felt it is a necessary and productive process to sit down and discuss 
differences instead of letting frustrations build up.  Director Rachel thought it may be 
beneficial to have the full Boards of both agencies meet for full disclosure.   It was agreed 
to start small then expand the group size after some solutions have been worked out.        
	

2.		 Agenda	Changes:	
	 President White said that Item 27, on Sea Level Rise (SLR), will be moved to the 

beginning of the agenda.  There we no other agenda changes.    

 
ACTION	ITEMS	BEFORE	THE	BOARD		
Action	Items	consist	of	business	which	requires	a	vote	by	the	Board.	These	items	are	acted	upon	in	
the	following	sequence:	(1)	Staff	Report	(2)	Board	Questions	to	Staff	(3)	Public	Comments,	and	
(4)	Board	Discussion	and	Action.		
	
27.		Sea	Level	Rise	Report	–	Staff	Report	by	Patrick	Treanor,	Plant	Engineer																																							
	 The SLR report as presented, followed conservative guidance standards for planning 

purposes regarding climate change and critical infrastructure.  Due to the significant 
community impact, the recommendation was made to form a committee to include other 
agencies in the solution process.  Director D’Ambrosio recommended that PBCSD be 
included, and in order to take a holistic approach, the Committee should include the 
topics of a floodwall and Carmel River Floodplain Restoration and Environmental 
Enhancement Project (CRFREE).  To clarify the baseline of critical plant levels, Mr. 
Treanor stated that 15 ft above sea level (SL) is the lowest ground level at the plant, and 
that building structures go up to 24 ft above SL.  Sea level at high tide is approximately 7 
feet above zero.  The baseline elevation and riverine flooding are the main issues 

              4



Minutes of the CAWD Special Board meeting held January 31, 2019 – 9:00 a.m. 

3 

 

anticipated to be exacerbated by climate change, although the plant was designed to 
operate in a floodplain.  Director Rachel inquired and Mr. Treanor confirmed that CAWD 
and other agencies are keeping historical data, photographs, and storm impacts on the 
plant and river that can be compared over time.   President White and Director Townsend 
commented that many agencies are studying and are affected by Sea Level Rise.  There 
will be ongoing, multi-agency collaboration.   

 
 Ms. Buikema recommended the SLR committee be made up of members from CAWD, 

PBCSD and the PB Company.  Mr. Niccum and Mr. Heuck agreed to participate.  Ms. 
Buikema pointed out that CAWD is the biggest property owner with 15 acres in the 
lagoon.  The District needs to be the leader on this issue if we want to guide our future.  
Mr. Niccum stated that the lowest area of the treatment plant and first to be addressed 
should be the MF/RO pad.  Ms. Buikema asked that “buy-in” for the formation of the SLR 
Committee be put on the next RMC meeting agenda and she confirmed the Coastal 
Commission has been alerted that we are doing our due diligence, but that March would 
be too soon to have our Draft Memorandum of Understanding put on their agenda.   

 
 Director Siegfried inquired and Ms. Buikema confirmed that the District would like the 

Committee to obtain legal opinions from a firm experienced with Coastal issues.  Mr. 
Niccum asked if this is a staff committee or policy making committee, and Ms. Buikema 
responded that she would like the CAWD Board to appoint two Board members to the 
committee and staff would act in a support role.   

   
Board	Action	

Following	a	motion	made	by	Director	D’Ambrosio	and	seconded	by	Director	Townsend,	the	
Board	unanimously	accepted	the	report;	agreed	to	allow	outside	agencies	to	participate	in	
the	committee;	and	appointed	Directors	D’Ambrosio	and	Siegfried	to	the	SLR	Committee.			
	
	

OTHER	ITEMS	BEFORE	THE	BOARD	
3. Employee	Acknowledgements:	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		

 Greg	Ange,	Maintenance	Mechanic	II	–	Achieved	the		
CWEA	Wastewater	Treatment	Plant	Operator,	Grade	III	Certification	

Mr. Ange was not able to attend so this item was moved to the next Regular Board 
meeting.  
 

CONSENT	CALENDAR:	APPROVAL	OF	MINUTES,	FINANCIAL	STATEMENTS	
AND	MONTHLY	REPORTS		
	
	

Board	Action	
Following	a	motion	made	by	Director	Siegfried	and	seconded	by	President	White,	the	Board	
unanimously	approved	the	Regular	Meeting	Minutes	of	December	13,	2018,	the	Special	Meeting	
Minutes	of	December	27,	2018	and	January	15,	2019,	and	enacted	the	following	Consent	Calendar	
items:	

 

              5



Minutes of the CAWD Special Board meeting held January 31, 2019 – 9:00 a.m. 

4 

 

4.	 Approve	Regular	Board	Meeting	Minutes	of	December	13,	2018	

5.	 Approve	Special	Board	Meeting	Minutes	of	December	27,	2018	
	

6.	 Approve	Special	Board	Meeting	Minutes	of	January	15,	2019	
	

7.	 Receive	and	Accept	Bank	Statement	Review	By	Hayashi	Wayland	–	November	2018		
	

8.	 Receive	and	Accept	Schedule	of	Cash	Receipts	and	Disbursements	–	November	2018	
And	December	2018	
	

9.	 Approve	Register	of	Disbursements	‐	Carmel	Area	Wastewater	District	–		
November	2018	And	December	2018	
Director D’Ambrosio referred to Check No: 33075 Del Monte Gardeners and asked for 
reasons of potential liability, if the fence has been reinstalled?  Mr. Lauer confirmed that it is 
a joint project between CAWD and the Mission and that the fence is scheduled to go in next 
week. 
	

10.	 Approve	Register	of	Disbursements	–	CAWD/PBCSD	Reclamation	Project	–		
November		2018	And	December	2018	
Director Rachel referred to Check No: 8269 and asked for background on the expenditures for 
Scinor cell membranes.  Mr. Waggoner advised that with the longest run of 2.5 years, the plant 
has experienced membrane failure.  Over the last 5 months, all cells have been replaced and 
many treatment plants are moving over to this Scinor product.  The cost benefit expected by this 
move, along with many other steps taken, is that secondary effluent quality will improve and 
that the lifespan of filters will potentially be extended to 5 years.   
	

11.	 Receive	and	Accept	Financial	Statements	and	Supplementary	Schedules	–		
November	2018	And	December	2018	

12.	 Receive	and	Accept	Collection	System	Superintendent’s	Report	–	December	2018	
	

13.	 Receive	and	Accept	2018	Annual	Collection	System	Superintendent’s	Report		
Director Siegfried stated the report lacked analysis and comparable data.  He asked that a 
template be developed clearly indicating specific information that needs to be included in 
reports to the Board.  Ms. Lather said that she has completed Sewer System Management Plan 
(SSMP) audits in the past and will be doing one for CAWD this next year.  She thought it would 
address Director Siegfried’s concerns and outstanding questions, and that it will include such 
things as trends, data for the past 5 years, root control and related spills, etc.  Audits are 
conducted every 2 years.  Ms. Buikema suggested staff report back next month with an outline 
of all parameters included in the SSMP so the Board can decide if they would like additional 
information added.   
 
Mr. Waggoner said that for treatment processes, all information is submitted in tabulation and 
electronic form.  The state only requires annual reporting, so it is challenging to do a 

              6



Minutes of the CAWD Special Board meeting held January 31, 2019 – 9:00 a.m. 

5 

 

comparison.  He further commented that comparable data will be more accessible once all 
aspects of the Mainsaver program are up and running.     
 
Director D’Ambrosio asked about the grease trap on Sanitary Sewer Overflow #3 and Mr. Lauer 
confirmed that the school’s pizza oven did not have a grease trap in place prior to this 
occurrence and that a check valve has now been installed.  The Sanitary Sewer Overflow (SSO) 
happened further downstream but this was the low spot.    	
	

14.	 Receive	and	Accept	Safety	And	Regulatory	Compliance	Report	–	December	2018	
Director Siegfried asked that this Item be pulled from the Consent Agenda for further discussion 
later in the meeting.   
	

15.	 Receive	and	Accept	Treatment	Facility	Operations	Report	–	October	2018	
November	2018	And	December	2018	

16.	 Receive	and	Accept	Laboratory/Environmental	Compliance	Report	–	December	2018	

17.	 Receive	and	Accept	Capital	Projects	Report/Implementation	Schedule	–	December	
2018	
	

18.	 Receive	and	Accept	Plant	Operations	Report	–	December	2018	
	

19.	
	

Receive	and	Accept	Maintenance	Projects	Report	–	December	2018	
Director Siegfried asked and Mr. Waggoner confirmed that the downtime was not on the 
new turbines.  	
	

20.	
	

Receive	Principal	Engineer	Monthly	Report	General	Engineering	–	December	2018	
	

	
RESOLUTIONS/ORDINANCES	
21.	 Resolution No. 2019-02;	A	Resolution	Authorizing	The	General	Manager	To	Execute	a	

Minor	Services	Contract	With	Hall	Landscape	Design	In	An	Amount	Not	To	Exceed	
$27,375	For	WWTP	Perimeter	Trees	and	Interior	Landscape	Planning ‐ Report	by	
Patrick	Treanor,	Plant	Engineer	
 
Mr. Treanor and Ms. Buikema stated that the study is broken into two parts:  the perimeter 
Eucalyptus trees and the plant interior.  The contract must be approved the by the Coastal 
Commission and California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) for environmental impact.    		
	
Director D’Ambrosio previously drafted a vegetation management plan and  
recommended that the District pursue an updated, all inclusive, landscape plan.  He 
mentioned that State Parks may support removing the eucalyptus trees since they are an 
invasive species.  A coastal biologist or related approved expert would need to be consulted.  
Director D’Ambrosio said the concept was to plant native wetland species to block the view. 
The whole process could take seven to ten years.     
	

              7



Minutes of the CAWD Special Board meeting held January 31, 2019 – 9:00 a.m. 

6 

 

	

	 Director White said the District needs to be concerned about the Meadow’s property owners 
and do public outreach before any trees are cut.  Since the money is coming from reserves, 
and the issue is not time sensitive, Director Siegfried suggested delaying the expenditure to 
next fiscal year so the costs could be budgeted.   
 

Board	Action	
Following	a	motion	made	by	Director	Siegfried	and	seconded	by	President	White,	the	
Board	unanimously	agreed	to	table	Resolution	No.	2019‐02	to	the	June	Board	meeting.			

22.	 Resolution No. 2019-03;	A	Resolution	Authorizing	The	General	Manager	To	Enter	Into	A	
contract	With	Cintas	Uniform	Company	For	Laundry	and	Linen	Service	For	A	Period	of	
Five	Years	- Report	By	Daryl	Lauer,	Collection	Superintendent	
	

Board	Action	
Following	a	motion	made	by	Director	D’Ambrosio	and	seconded	by	Director	Siegfried,	the	
Board	unanimously	adopted	Resolution	No.	2019‐03.					

	
23.	 Resolution No. 2019-04;	A	Resolution	Authorizing	The	General	Manager	To	Enter	Into	A	

Contract	With	The	City	Of	Carmel‐by‐the‐Sea	In	An	Amount	Not	To	Exceed	$25,000	To	
Provide	Storm	Interceptor	Cleaning	Services	- Report	By	Daryl	Lauer,	Collection	
Superintendent	

Director D’Ambrosio suggested that when the Treatment Plant paving is finished, we may 
want to add into this City contract a periodic street sweeping of the plant and entryway.   

Board	Action	
Following	a	motion	made	by	Director	Townsend	and	seconded	by	Director	Rachel,	the	
Board	unanimously	adopted	Resolution	No.	2019‐04.					
	

24.	 Resolution No. 2019-05;	A	Resolution	Approving	An	Amendment	To	The	District’s	
Vehicle	Policy	- Report	By	Barbara	Buikema,	General	Manager	
	

Board	Action	
Following	a	motion	made	by	Director	D’Ambrosio	and	seconded	by	Director	Townsend,	the	
Board	unanimously	adopted	Resolution	No.	2019‐05.					

	
25.	 Resolution No. 2019-06;	A	Resolution	Approving	An	Amendment	To	The	District’s		

Expense	Reimbursement	Policy	- Report	By	Barbara	Buikema,	General	Manager	
	
Ms. Buikema confirmed the sections regarding Vehicle Use have been updated and reviewed 
by Legal Counsel.   

	
Board	Action	

Following	a	motion	made	by	Director	Rachel	and	seconded	by	Director	Siegfried,	the	Board	
unanimously	adopted	Resolution	No.	2019‐06.	

	

              8



Minutes of the CAWD Special Board meeting held January 31, 2019 – 9:00 a.m. 

7 

 

	
OTHER	ITEMS	BEFORE	THE	BOARD	

26.	 Board	Member	Committee	Assignments	for	2019	– Report	by	Irene	Bryant,	Board	
Secretary	Pro	Tem	

Board	Action	
Following	a	motion	made	by	Director	D’Ambrosio	and	seconded	by	Director	Townsend,	the	
Board	unanimously	accepted	the	2019	Committee	Assignments,	including	the	addition	of	
the	SLR	Committee	Members	added	under	Item	27	of	this	meeting.			
	

28.	 Collection	System	Asset	Management	– Staff Report	by	Rachel	Lather,	Principal	Engineer	
And	Daryl	Lauer,	Collections	Superintendent																																																																																		 													
	
Mr. Lauer said this Asset Management Plan (AMP) addresses everything under the ground, 
identifies risk, consequence of failure, and includes a severity index rating.  Ms. Lather 
pointed out the sections of Medium-High and High-Risk priorities that could take 10-20 
years to address.  The Board felt this was a very good report and noted that the Budget 
Committee will have much planning and analysis to determine how and when to implement 
these repairs.       
 
Director Rachel initiated discussion on High Risk priorities.  Mr. Lauer stated that the High-
Risk categories might not be in imminent danger of failing today but are on a path of 
probability with consequences of failure, and areas or bodies of water affected that need to 
be mitigated.  Ms. Lather advised that they are attempting to prioritize repairs by risk rating 
and group them into packages so that the District could better obtain efficient bids to 
address affected areas.    

	Board	Action	
Following	a	motion	made	by	President	White	and	seconded	by	Director	Siegfried,	the	
Board	unanimously	accepted	the	report.			

 
 

	

14.	 Receive	and	Accept	Safety	and	Regulatory	Compliance	Report	–	December	2018	
 
Referring to Respiratory Safety and environmental concerns, Director Siegfried stated that the 
plant needs to have a better handle on the nitrogen process ins and outs of the system, even though 
the amounts of off-gassing are miniscule.  He feels we need to fall in line with what the state does.  
Mr. Treanor advised this requires more research and study to understand the process better. There 
should be improved tracking methods, as well as ongoing analysis of data.  He noted that nitrogen 
and oxygenation techniques are completely different.  Mr. Waggoner agreed that a short-term 
solution was needed, and pointed out that detention time will be reduced as other users connect to 
that part of the pipeline.  Mr. Lauer said that last week’s logs indicated we’ve had the largest 
reduction of hydrogen sulfide in 5 years.  
 

	Board	Action	
Following	a	motion	made	by	President	White	and	seconded	by	Director	Siegfried,	the	
Board	unanimously	accepted	the	report.			

              9



Minutes of the CAWD Special Board meeting held January 31, 2019 – 9:00 a.m. 

8 

 

INFORMATION/DISCUSSION	ITEMS	
29.	 CMMS	(Computerized	Maintenance	Mgmt.	Software)	Demo	And	Progress	Update	–	

Report	by	Chris	Foley,	Maintenance	Superintendent		
 
Ms. Cristi presented a PowerPoint presentation noting that CMMS will always be a “work in 
progress”.  The goal this past year was to develop asset management, whereas the upcoming 
focus will be to get reporting information into a useable format.  After initial maintenance is 
performed, reliability centered maintenance will also be further analyzed and scheduled 
accordingly.  Purchasing is being transitioned into the Mainsaver system so the information 
will auto populate, though it won’t prevent manual scanning since that is required for the 
annual audit.  President White inquired and staff advised that we have been working on this 
program since 2012.   
 

The	report	was	informational	only	–	no	action	required.	

30.	 Pebble	Beach	Community	Services	District:		Regular	Board	Meeting	Of		
December	7,	2018	– Report	by	Barbara	Buikema,	General	Manager	
	

The	report	was	informational	only	–	no	action	required.	
	

31.	 Semi‐Annual	Progress	Report	Update	For	July‐Dec	2018	– Report	by	Barbara	Buikema,	
General	Manager	
	
The Board commended staff for progress on entering a Memorandum of Understanding 
(MOU) with the County for the outfall project and remaining the Lead Agency for the Central 
Coast Long-term Environmental Assessment Network (CCLEAN). 
 

The report was informational only – no action required.
  
 STAFF	&	BOARD	MEMBER	REPORTS	
Staff	Reports	include	items	for	which	verbal	reports/presentation	will	be	provided.	If	a	specific	
presentation	is	planned,	it	will	be	listed	and	summary	information	may	be	included	with	the	
Agenda.	Brief	oral	reports	may	be	provided	for	items	arising	after	the	Agenda	preparation.	The	
Board	may	wish	to	ask	questions	or	discuss	a	staff	report,	but	no	action	is	appropriate	other	than	
referral	to	staff,	or	request	a	matter	be	set	as	a	future	Agenda	Item.	
	
32. General	Manager’s	Report - Oral	Report	by	Barbara	Buikema,	General	Manager	

	
 The District has formally rescinded our $1M California Governor’s Office of Emergency 

Services (CalOES) grant for the outfall pipeline.  We could not meet the qualifications 
and time limitations with HDD (horizontal directional drilling) which exceeded the 
benefit-cost analysis.  The District is now partnering with the County, and they will 
apply for the additional funds under their grant.  If awarded, we will be a sub grantee of 
the County.   
 

 Ms. Buikema announced that she will be taking a 1-week vacation and that Ms. Lather 
will be the Acting General Manager in her absence. 
 

              10



Minutes of the CAWD Special Board meeting held January 31, 2019 – 9:00 a.m. 

9 

 

	 	

33. Announcements	On	Subjects	Of	Interest	To	The	Board	Made	By	Members	Of	The	Board	
or	Staff - Oral reports or announcements from Board President, Directors or staff concerning 
their activities and/or meetings or conferences attended. 

 
 Director Rachel inquired about the significant time savings with using the CSI HR 

Group.  Ms. Buikema said that the District has purchased a separate trailer for Ms. 
Ingram, and that employees are happy that there is now a dedicated representative for 
human resources who is available by phone 24/7.  CSI HR Group is also making 
progress on the outdated Employee Handbook and is working to incorporate all past 
approved Board Resolutions. 
 

 Director Townsend would also like staff to work on an introductory binder for newly 
elected Board Directors.  She also reminded current Board Members to check their mail 
and inbox in the Director’s office.  

 

PBCSD	Board	Public	Meeting	Notice	&	Agenda–The next PBCSD meetings are scheduled for: 
Friday, January 25, 2019 at 9:30a.m.  Director	Rachel	attended. 
Friday, February 22, 2019 at 9:30a.m.  Director	Siegfried	is	scheduled	to	attend.	

Reclamation	Management	Committee	Meeting – The next RMC meeting is scheduled for:  
Wednesday, February 13, 2019 at 9:30 a.m.  Director	Townsend	and	Director	White	are	scheduled	to	
attend.			
	
Special	Districts	Association	of	Monterey	County–The next SDA meeting is scheduled for: 
Wednesday, February 15, 2019 at 6:00 pm.  Director	Townsend	is	scheduled	to	attend. 
	

	
34.	 CLOSED	SESSION	
Pursuant	to	Government	Code	Section	54956	and	54957	et	seq.,	the	Board	met	in	closed	session.	
	
A.	 Conference	with	Labor	Negotiators	pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.6.  

District designated representatives:  Board of Directors, Unrepresented Employees:  All		
 

B.	 Public	Employee	Performance	Evaluation	pursuant to Government Code Section 
54957(b).  Title: General Manager	

The Board convened in closed session at 11:00a.m. and reconvened to open session at 
11:20a.m.  Legal Counsel announced that in closed session the Board took up both items listed 
on the closed session agenda, and as to each matter the Board received information from the 
General Manager, and no reportable action was taken.   
	
	
	
	

              11



Minutes of the CAWD Special Board meeting held January 31, 2019 – 9:00 a.m. 

10 

 

	 
35.	 ADJOURNMENT	
There	being	no	further	business	to	come	before	the	Board,	the	President	adjourned	the	meeting	at	
11:21a.m.	The	next	regular	meeting	will	be	held	at	9:00a.m.,	Thursday,	February	28,	2019	or	an	
alternate	acceptable	date,	in	the	Board	Room	of	the	District	Office,	3945	Rio	Road,	Carmel,	CA	
93923.	 
	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 As	Reported	To:	 	
	
	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 __________________________________________________	

Irene	Bryant,	Board	Secretary	Pro	Tem	

APPROVED:	
	
	
________________________________________________	
Ken	White,	Board	President	

              12



Minutes of the CAWD Special Board meeting held January 22, 2019 – 8:30 a.m. 

1 

 

 
 

CARMEL AREA WASTEWATER DISTRICT (CAWD)  
SPECIAL BOARD MEETING MINUTES  

BOARD STRATEGY STUDY SESSION MEETING 
January 22, 2019 

 
CALL	TO	ORDER	‐	ROLL	CALL	‐ The meeting was called to order at 8:26 a.m.				
	
Present:					Ken White, President, Directors: Robert Siegfried, Charlotte Townsend, Greg D’Ambrosio, 

and  Michael Rachel 
 
Absent:							None 
 
Others:	 Barbara Buikema, General Manager, Carmel Area Wastewater District (CAWD) 

Rachel Lather, Principal Engineer, CAWD 
Patrick Treanor, Plant Engineer, CAWD 
Chris Foley, Maintenance Superintendent 
Ed Waggoner, Plant Superintendent 
Daryl Lauer, Collections Superintendent 
Domine Barringer, Administrative Assistant/Board Clerk, CAWD 
Catherine Hambley, Ph.D., LeapFrog Consulting Facilitator 
Robert Wellington, Wellington Law Offices, District Legal Counsel 

                        Suha Kilic, Deputy General Manager, Pebble Beach Community Services District, (PBCSD) 
Peter McKee, President, (PBCSD) 
Nicholas Becker, Principal Engineer, (PBCSD) 
  
 

Location:				Hayashi & Wayland – 26515 Carmel Rancho Blvd, Suite 100, Carmel, CA 93923 
  

 
APPEARANCES,	ORDERS	OF	BUSINESS	&	ANNOUNCEMENTS		
1.		 Appearances/Public	Comments:	 
 Mr. Kilic would like both parties to focus on the synergies built between PBCSD and CAWD and 

would like to keep looking forward.  Mr. Kilic was appreciative of Mr. Foley assisting PBCSD with 
fixing their pump stations.  In turn, PBCSD provided the use of their boat for a recent CAWD 
project.  These are mutually beneficial relationships.  

2.		 Agenda	Changes:	
There were no agenda changes.   

 
ACTION	ITEMS	BEFORE	THE	BOARD		
Action	Items	consist	of	business	which	requires	a	vote	by	the	Board.	These	items	are	acted	upon	in	the	
following	sequence:	(1)	Staff	Report	(2)	Board	Questions	to	Staff	(3)	Public	Comments,	and	(4)	Board	
Discussion	and	Action.		

              13



Minutes of the CAWD Special Board meeting held January 22, 2019 – 8:30 a.m. 

2 

 

	
3.		PURPOSE	OF	STRATEGIC	MEETING	

The purpose of this meeting is to discuss strategy and vision and the inclusion of Staff  ideas.  The intent is to 
have the Board build upon the ideas presented.  

	
A. Mission	Statement	–	Review		

 CAWD returns clean water to the community through cost-effective collections and 
treatment.   

 Further discussion is needed regarding the use of environment, clean, and community 
within the mission statement.  

 Alternative Suggestion: CAWD returns clean water to the environment through cost 
effective collection and treatment.  

 The consensus was for the Board to discuss further and to compare to other Districts.   
 

B. Purpose‐	Why	do	we	exist?	(Our	Mission)		
 The protection of the public health and the environment through cost effective 

collection and treatment of wastewater and the return of clean water to the 
environment.  
 

C. Threats	and	Opportunities	
Threats:	
 What are the potential obstacles to our success? 
 What are the seen and unforeseen threats we face? 

o Water conservation. 
o Seal level rise. 
o Retirements. 
o Local competition for talent and scope of services. 
o Board succession planning. 

 
Opportunities:	
 What are potential opportunities we could seize upon? 
 What could we leverage that we are not currently leveraging? (e.g. assets, 

relationships, public education). 
o Lagoon project.  
o Automation. 
o Relationships with City of Carmel and Monterey County. 
o Public outreach/education. 
o Expand our District. 
o Shared Services. 
o Provide water delivery. 

 
D. Vision	Statement‐	Review ‐Where	is	CAWD	headed?	

 CAWD will be known as best in industry. 
 CAWD can be best in our respective category.  

 
 
 

              14



Minutes of the CAWD Special Board meeting held January 22, 2019 – 8:30 a.m. 

3 

 

E. Core	Values	–	What	we	stand	for?		
 Integrity: Always focus on doing what’s right, even if it is the more difficult choice. 
 Service Orientation: Strive to understand and address the needs of all our 

“customers”, including co-workers, the public, other agencies, and vendors. 
 Teamwork: Collaborate with others and work together as one team, regardless of 

department. 
 Shared Learning: Find opportunities to mentor others, to learn from each other, and 

to continually improve 
 Safety: Empower or people to act in ways that protect our co-workers, the public, and 

the environment. 
 Financial Stewardship: Recognize that our people all play a role in being fiscally 

responsible so that CAWD has the financial resources to fulfill its mission. 
	
F. Strategic	Goals	&	Targets	–	What	results	will	we	measure?		

 Strive for Excellence. 
 Seize Opportunities to Expand Services. 
 Adopt innovations and new ideas. 
 Maximize our assets. 
 Grow and retain talent. 

	
G. Strategies–	How	we	will	we	achieve	our	vision?		

 Reduce the call-out’s under our control to zero. 
 Attain zero violations 
 Maintain cash reserves to fund our long-term capital plan. 
 Recover at least 87% of our water. 

	
H. Action	Plans‐	What	is	the	work	to	be	done?		

 Report on metrics to Board quarterly. 
	

Break	from	9:56	am	to	10:10	am	
President	White	Reconvened	meeting	at	10:10	am	

	
	

No	Board	Action	taken.		No	motions	were	made	during	this	strategy	meeting	as	this	is	a	study	
session.	There	was	a	consensus	to	report	quarterly	and	to	have	further	discussions.	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	

Break	from	11:25	am	to	11:30	am	(Staff	left	the	premise)	
	
	
	
	

              15



Minutes of the CAWD Special Board meeting held January 22, 2019 – 8:30 a.m. 

4 

 

	
The	Board	reconvened	at	11:30	am	and	the	2nd	half	of	the	meeting	was	adjourned	at	12:09	pm.	
	
Attendees:	
Present:					Ken White, President, Directors: Robert Siegfried, Charlotte Townsend, Greg D’Ambrosio, 

and  Michael Rachel 
 
Absent:							None 
 
Others:	 Barbara Buikema, General Manager, Carmel Area Wastewater District (CAWD) 

Domine Barringer, Administrative Assistant/Board Clerk, CAWD 
Catherine Hambley, Ph.D., LeapFrog Consulting Facilitator 
Robert Wellington, Wellington Law Offices, District Legal Counsel 

	
I. Sea	Level	Rise	

 Recommendation of staff is to form a Committee with guidance from the Board and the 
Committee should include PBCSD.	

 Significant impact on the Community.	
	

J. 						Board	Succession	
 What is the approach to Board succession for CAWD?	

 
 

No	Board	Action	taken.		No	motions	were	made	during	this	strategy	meeting	as	this	is	a	study	
session.	There	was	a	consensus	to	report	quarterly	and	to	have	further	discussions.	

	
4.	 ADJOURNMENT	
There	being	no	further	business	to	come	before	the	Board,	the	President	adjourned	the	meeting	at	12:09	
p.m.	The next regular meeting will be held at 9:00 a.m., Thursday, January 31, 2019 or an alternate acceptable 
date, in the Board Room of the District Office, 3945 Rio Road, Carmel, CA 93923.  
	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 Respectfully	submitted:	 	
	
	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 __________________________________________________	

Domine	Barringer,	Secretary	to	the	Board	

APPROVED:	
	
________________________________________________	
Ken	White,	President	

              16



              17



              18



              19

barringer
Highlight



              20



              21



              22

barringer
Highlight



              23

barringer
Highlight



              24

barringer
Highlight



              25

barringer
Highlight



              26



              27



              28



              29



              30



              31



              32



              33



              34



              35



              36



              37



              38



              39



              40



              41



              42



              43



              44



              45



              46



              47



              48



              49



 
  

 

STAFF REPORT     
 

TO:    Board of Directors 

 

FROM:  Daryl Lauer, Collection Superintendent 

 

DATE:            February 28, 2019   
         
SUBJECT:  Monthly Report – January 

 

RECOMMENDATION  
 
Receive Report‐ Informational only; no action required.  

 

             

Permits Issued 

 

Sewer Lateral Permits issued in January…............................................                                  9 

 

Total Fees.......................................................................................................  $ 1675.00 

 

 

Maintenance  

 

Attached is a map of the locations cleaned in past three months. There were no CCTV 

sewer line inspections during the month of January.   

 

Cleaning period  Footage Cleaned  Percentage Cleaned  Size of Pipe Cleaned 

November  50,568 ft.  12.30%  6 – 15 inches 

December  52,724 ft.  12.84%  6 – 27 inches 

January  55,165 ft.  13.41%  6 – 12 inches 

 

Construction Activities 

 

Staff made an emergency repair to a 10’ section of sewer line in the Del Mesa area that 

was ripped from the ground when a tree fell.  

 

              50



 
  

General Comments 

 

N/A 

 

Service Calls Responded to by Crew 

 

Date  Time  Callout  Resolution 

1/2/19  12:25 PM  Internal plumbing of home 

blockage 

Staff informed owner to call their 

plumber 

1/7/19  1:30 PM  Lateral Overflow  Staff informed owner to call their 

plumber 

1/14/19  10:58 AM  Mainline Overflow  Called by maintenance staff to the 

Del Mesa retirement community for 

sewer overflowing. Staff arrived to 

find a large Monterey pine had fallen 

and the root mass broke the pipeline 

near the tree. Staff set up a temporary

by‐pass until a repair was made. 2008 

gallons spilled. 

1/15/19  4:53 PM  Power fail Calle La Cruz and 

Ribera Pump Station 

Staff monitored stations until power 

was restored. 

1/16/19  4:09 PM  Power Fail at Hacienda pump 

station 

Staff monitored stations until power 

was restored. 

1/18/19  8:45 AM   Lateral Overflow  Staff informed owner to call their 

plumber 

1/22/19  10:21 AM  Fallen tree on easement  Homeowner had concern that a fallen

tree caused possible damage to sewer 

line. Staff check the mainline and 

found no damage to sewer pipe.  

1/26/19  3:17 PM  Lateral Overflow  Staff informed owner to call their 

plumber 

 

USA Location Requests – 66 

Plumbing permit inspections – 8 

 

FUNDING 

N/A‐ Informational item only   

              51



2/12/2019

              52

lauer
Text Box
November (Magenta) -  50,568 feetDecember (Yellow) -     52,724 feetJanuary (Red) -             55,165 feet                        Monthly Cleaning Map



% of Total MG

70.603 273.84

29.397 127.04

100.00 400.88

85.540 305.28

10.260 96.83

0.000 5.009

1 QTR 2 QTR 3 QTR 4 QTR

1770.27 1692.20 1678.08 n/a

1780.18 2260.45 2164.89 n/a

(1) Cost adjustment for Reclamation perentage for Secondary power costs and CAWD's percentage for Tertiary's 

power costs due to the Laboratory usage
(2) Micro Turbine system off‐line Nov 15 thru Nov 30 due to equipment malfunction

CAWD  1407.39

25,935.21$                            

6,671.63$     

Reclamation

1374.11 1601.12

Reclaim Total

19,382.41$   

Adjusted Monthly 

Totals (1)

0.120$             

Tertiary

Total Annual Reclamation Production (2018)          

197,736.00

0.000

Ocean Discharge

Price per kWh

0.136$             

Nov'18

0.000

0.79423.837

Monthly Totals

1.125

HYDRAULIC LOADINGS

9.925

33.762

Avg. Daily, 

MGD

Total 

Monthly, MG

3.464

CAWD Total   

25,142.67$   

0.2500.331

0.077

0.963

Wastewater Treatment Facility Operations Report

PBCSD Flow

Total Plant Flow

Tertiary Flow

0.683 1.167

5,495

Aug '18

11,457

2 QTR

17,384.70$                            

Oct'18November '18 KWh 

41,736.37$                            

kW‐h Per Acre Foot

9,222

Sept'18

9,909.43$     

24,987.80$                            

17,179.94$                            

703,885.00

42,167.74$                            

9,138.52$                               

2018 YEAR‐TO‐DATE

acre‐feet
Max Daily, 

MGD

Min Daily, 

MGD

11,383

Aug '18

2017

Accumulated Totals

31,385.19$                            

Potable Water

CAWD Flow

Blowers

Secondary

TERTIARY PROCESS HISTORY

Report for: 

November 2018

28.880

0.115

12 Month Rolling Total Reclamation Production    

COMMENTS

MF/RO

305.28 MG (936.90 acre‐ft.)

Total Lifetime Reclamation Production (94‐18)      

23,515.58$   

8,638.06$                               

ELECTRICAL COSTS

Month

Production, kWh

109,247.00

142,086.00

89,891.68

34,573.27$                            

Nov '18 kWh

15,952.35$   

0.132$             

55,650.00

35,052.10$   26,054.04$   

22,246.67$                            

Sept '18

389.70

297.03

15.365

334.30 MG (1025.97 acre‐ft.)

0.000

0.933

0.684 1.353

0.162

1229.70

7.88 BG (24.20 B acre‐ft.)

1.723

840.00

936.45

Oct'18

0.000

0.556

CAWD Total

38,509.96$                            

MICROTURBINE SUMMARY

4 QTR

2000.04

1923.82

1 QTR 3 QTR

2579.46 1871.10

Reclamation Total                       

199,138.68 29,271.58$    39,813.90$   

2018

16,298.32$   

0.148$              24,351.67$                            

13,319.23$   

16,815.66$                               

1813.37

              53



0.000

10.000

20.000

30.000

40.000

50.000

60.000

Dec 17 Jan 18 Feb 18 Mar 18 Apr 18 May 18 Jun 18 Jul 18 Aug 18 Sep 18 Oct 18 Nov 18

Total Outflow Outfall Flow, mg

Tertiary Flow, mg

Total Discharge, mg

0.000

5.000

10.000

15.000

20.000

25.000

30.000

35.000

40.000

45.000

50.000

Dec 17 Jan 18 Feb 18 Mar 18 Apr 18 May 18 Jun 18 Jul 18 Aug 18 Sep 18 Oct 18 Nov 18

Total Inflow PBCSD Influent Flow, mg

CAWD Influent Flow, mg

Total Influent Flow, mg

-5.000

5.000

15.000

25.000

35.000

45.000

55.000

65.000

Dec 17 Jan 18 Feb 18 Mar 18 Apr 18 May 18 Jun 18 Jul 18 Aug 18 Sep 18 Oct 18 Nov 18

Total Golf Course Usage
Tertiary Flow, mg

Total Potable, mg

Total Golf Course, mg

              54



% of Total MG

70.083 298.69

29.917 137.65

100.00 436.33

84.954 335.40

11.195 100.80

0.000 5.009

1 QTR 2 QTR 3 QTR 4 QTR

1770.27 1692.20 1678.08 1883.03

1780.18 2260.45 2164.89 2254.65

(1) Cost adjustment for Reclamation perentage for Secondary power costs and CAWD's percentage for Tertiary's 

power costs due to the Laboratory usage
(2) Micro Turbine system off‐line the month of December due to equipment malfunction

2579.46 1871.10

Reclamation Total                       

211,440.88 31,457.60$    29,271.58$   

2018

20,430.52$                               

1813.37

38,502.98$                            

MICROTURBINE SUMMARY

4 QTR

2000.04

1923.82

1 QTR 3 QTR

1.275

0.213

1338.44

7.91 BG (24.29 B acre‐ft.)

1.408

916.21

1028.84

0.000

Oct '18

422.23

309.20

15.365

335.40 MG (1029.35 acre‐ft.)

0.000

0.981

0.815

Nov'18

0.508

21,161.35$   

0.134$             

50,255.52

26,054.04$   27,475.90$   

25,935.21$                            

13,319.23$   

0.128$              23,515.58$                            

10,296.25$   

COMMENTS

MF/RO

335.40 MG (1029.34 acre‐ft.)

Total Lifetime Reclamation Production (94‐18)      

15,952.35$   

9,909.43$                               

ELECTRICAL COSTS

Month

Production,kWh 

Potable Water

CAWD Flow

Blowers

Secondary

TERTIARY PROCESS HISTORY

Report for: 

December 2018

30.118

0.128

12 Month Rolling Total Reclamation Production    

9,222

Sept '18

2017

Accumulated Totals

34,573.27$                            

130,778.00

154,252.00

80,662.88

35,052.10$                            

Oct'18

6,671.63$     

24,351.67$                            

17,384.70$                            

703,885.00

41,736.37$                            

8,638.06$                               

0 (2)

Sept '18

11,383

2 QTR

16,298.32$                            

Nov'18December '18 KWh 

39,813.90$                            

kW‐h Per Acre Foot

5,495

Wastewater Treatment Facility Operations Report

PBCSD Flow

Total Plant Flow

Tertiary Flow

0.706 0.900

2018 YEAR‐TO‐DATE

acre‐feet
Max Daily, 

MGD

Min Daily, 

MGD

HYDRAULIC LOADINGS

10.606

35.452

Avg. Daily, 

MGD

Total 

Monthly, MG

3.969

CAWD Total   

19,382.41$   

0.275

Dec'18

0.000

0.80224.846

Monthly Totals

1.144

0.342

0.096

0.972

Dec '18 kWh

0.140$             

Tertiary

Total Annual Reclamation Production (2018)          

204,507.52

0.000

Ocean Discharge

Price per kWh

0.133$             

CAWD Total

CAWD  1407.39

25,142.67$                            

7,033.64$     

Reclamation

1374.11 1601.12

Reclaim Total

20,442.26$   

Adjusted Monthly 

Totals (1)

              55



0.000

10.000

20.000

30.000

40.000

50.000

60.000

Jan 18 Feb 18 Mar 18 Apr 18 May 18 Jun 18 Jul 18 Aug 18 Sep 18 Oct 18 Nov 18 Dec 18

Total Outflow Outfall Flow, mg

Tertiary Flow, mg

Total Discharge, mg

0.000

5.000

10.000

15.000

20.000

25.000

30.000

35.000

40.000

45.000

50.000

Jan 18 Feb 18 Mar 18 Apr 18 May 18 Jun 18 Jul 18 Aug 18 Sep 18 Oct 18 Nov 18 Dec 18

Total Inflow PBCSD Influent Flow, mg

CAWD Influent Flow, mg

Total Influent Flow, mg

-5.000

5.000

15.000

25.000

35.000

45.000

55.000

65.000

Jan 18 Feb 18 Mar 18 Apr 18 May 18 Jun 18 Jul 18 Aug 18 Sep 18 Oct 18 Nov 18 Dec 18

Total Golf Course Usage
Tertiary Flow, mg

Total Potable, mg

Total Golf Course, mg

              56



% of Total MG

68.390 27.20

31.610 12.57

100.00 39.78

86.638 34.46

15.735 6.26

0.000 0.000

1 QTR 2 QTR 3 QTR 4 QTR

1770.27 1692.20 1678.08 1883.03

1780.18 2260.45 2164.89 2254.65

(1) Cost adjustment for Reclamation perentage for Secondary power costs and CAWD's percentage for Tertiary's 

power costs due to the Laboratory usage
(2) Micro Turbine system off‐line the month of January due to equipment malfunction

CAWD  1407.39

19,382.41$                            

6,251.31$     

Reclamation

1374.11 1601.12

Reclaim Total

19,162.99$   

Adjusted Monthly 

Totals (1)

0.142$             

Tertiary

Total Annual Reclamation Production (2019)          

185,393.64

0.000

Ocean Discharge

Price per kWh

0.136$             

CAWD Total

Jan'19

0.000

0.87727.204

Monthly Totals

1.283

0.406

0.123

1.112

Jan '19 kWh

HYDRAULIC LOADINGS

12.574

39.778

Avg. Daily, 

MGD

Total 

Monthly, MG

6.259

CAWD Total   

20,442.26$   

0.319

Wastewater Treatment Facility Operations Report

PBCSD Flow

Total Plant Flow

Tertiary Flow

0.751 1.253

2019 YEAR‐TO‐DATE

acre‐feet
Max Daily, 

MGD

Min Daily, 

MGD

0 (2)

Oct'18

9,222

2 QTR

13,319.23$                            

Dec'18Jan '19 KWh 

29,271.58$                            

kW‐h Per Acre Foot

0

Nov'18

7,033.64$     

23,515.58$                            

16,298.32$                            

703,885.00

39,813.90$                            

9,909.43$                               

5,495

Oct '18

2017

Accumulated Totals

35,052.10$                            

127,386.00

141,257.00

93,509.88

26,054.04$                            

Potable Water

CAWD Flow

Blowers

Secondary

TERTIARY PROCESS HISTORY

Report for: 

January 2019

34.463

0.202

12 Month Rolling Total Reclamation Production    

COMMENTS

MF/RO

34.46 MG (105.71 acre‐ft)

Total Lifetime Reclamation Production (94‐19)      

21,161.35$   

6,671.63$                               

ELECTRICAL COSTS

Month

Production,kWh 

20,346.02$   

0.137$             

44,136.64

27,475.90$   25,414.30$   

25,142.67$                            

10,296.25$   

0.136$              15,952.35$                            

12,687.06$   

Nov '18

38.57

19.20

0.000

331.31 MG (1016.80 acre‐ft.)

0.000

1.070

0.877

Dec'18

0.650

1.432

0.502

122.02

7.95 BG (24.40 B acre‐ft.)

1.903

83.45

105.71

0.000

40,229.90$                            

MICROTURBINE SUMMARY

4 QTR

2000.04

1923.82

1 QTR 3 QTR

2579.46 1871.10

Reclamation Total                       

220,895.88 33,033.08$    31,457.60$   

2018

18,217.48$                               

1813.37

              57



0.000

10.000

20.000

30.000

40.000

50.000

60.000

Feb 18 Mar 18 Apr 18 May 18 Jun 18 Jul 18 Aug 18 Sep 18 Oct 18 Nov 18 Dec 18 Jan 19

Total Outflow Outfall Flow, mg

Tertiary Flow, mg

Total Discharge, mg

0.000

5.000

10.000

15.000

20.000

25.000

30.000

35.000

40.000

45.000

50.000

Feb 18 Mar 18 Apr 18 May 18 Jun 18 Jul 18 Aug 18 Sep 18 Oct 18 Nov 18 Dec 18 Jan 19

Total Inflow PBCSD Influent Flow, mg

CAWD Influent Flow, mg

Total Influent Flow, mg

-5.000

5.000

15.000

25.000

35.000

45.000

55.000

65.000

Feb 18 Mar 18 Apr 18 May 18 Jun 18 Jul 18 Aug 18 Sep 18 Oct 18 Nov 18 Dec 18 Jan 19

Total Golf Course Usage
Tertiary Flow, mg

Total Potable, mg

Total Golf Course, mg

              58



STAFF REPORT  
 

 

To:    Board of Directors 

 

From:    Ray De Ocampo 

Laboratory/Environmental Compliance 

Supervisor 

 

Date:    February 28, 2019 

 

Subject:  Monthly Report – January 2019 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

Receive Report‐Informational only; No action required 

 
DISCUSSION 
 

LABORATORY REPORT 

 Plant Superintendent Waggoner requested the laboratory staff to perform 

sampling and analysis of 3 locations in the event the Lagoon Outfall Pipe fails.  

The sites are Carmel River Bridge on the northside of the treatment plant, Carmel 

River Lagoon and SRF‐K5.  The analysis for the Carmel River and Lagoon will be 

Total Coliform, Fecal Coliform, Enterococcus, Total Suspended Solids, and BOD. 

 The analysis for SRF‐K5 will be Total Coliform, Fecal Coliform, Enterococcus, 

Total Suspended Solids.  The sampling will be on a Monday, Wednesday and 

Friday schedule until further notice that the Outfall Line repair is completed. 

 CCLEAN staff is preparing for Wet Season monitoring of Final Effluent on 1‐24‐

19.  The start of the CCLEAN will begin on February 11, 2019. 

 

ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE REPORT 

 Pangaca Grill has opened at the old Grill on Ocean location. 

 

Restaurant Inspection Table 

 

Restaurant 

 

Compliant 

Reason for Non‐

Compliance 

 

Comments 

L’escargot  Yes     

All Saints Episcopal 

Church 

Yes     

              59



Patisserie Boissiere  Yes     

Casanova  Yes     

Anton and Michel  Yes     

Akanoi  Yes     

Mission Ranch  Yes     

Aabha Indian Cuisine  Yes     

Allegro Pizzeria   Yes     

A.W. Shucks  Yes     

 

 

Grocery Store/Delicatessen Inspection Table 

Grocery 

Store/Delicatessen 

 

Compliant 

Reason for Non‐

Compliance 

 

Comments 

None       

 

 

Restaurant Compliance Table 

% Compliance  Maintenance  Mechanical 

Nov 2018  100%  100% 

Dec 2018  100%  100% 

Jan 2019  100%  100% 

 

 

FUNDING 

 

N/A‐Informational item only 

              60



 
 1 

 

 
 
Staff Report    
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Ed Waggoner                                               

Operations Superintendent 
 
SUBJECT: Monthly Report – January 2019 
 
DATE:           February 28, 2019               
                   
 
RECOMMENDATION  
 
Receive Report-Informational only; no action required 
 
 
DISCUSSION 

Plant Operation 
Treatment Plant: 
 

•    The treatment plant in general is working well. The plant continued to perform with the 
high infiltration flows from the winter storms during January.  
 

• Staff finished submitting all paperwork for renewal of the “Report of Waste Discharge” 
(ROWD) for both Ocean Outfall Discharge Permit (NPDES) and Reclamation 
Discharge Permit. 
 

•    Staff submitted Annual Reports for the Ocean Outfall Discharge Permit, Reclamation 
Discharge Permit and the Annual Biosolids Permit.  

 
•    One Tour group from Pebble Beach Golf Courses on January 18th consisting of their 

Golf Interns and Superintendents.  
 

 
 

 

 

              61



 
 2 

Reclamation: 
 

•  CAWD Staff continues working with H2O Innovations. The RO programming is completed 
with the MF programming scheduled to be completed in late February. 

 
•  Staff has been monitoring the TMP (Trans Membrane Pressure) and Resistance values on all 

three MF Cells. The TMPs are averaging between 2.0 and 4.4 during full production cycles. 
 

•  Project #18-24, Staff finished installing chemical feed system including control 
programming for the Coagulation/Flocculation Basins in January. Staff continued testing 
Dynasand filters in preparation for the 2019 irrigation season. 

 
Training: 
 

•   Plant in-house training continues with weekly Safety meetings.  
 

•   Operations Superintendent on Fridays every week has Operations training (1 hour) 
which is mandatory for Operations Staff and is available to Laboratory, Maintenance, 
Collection and any other CAWD employees.  

 
Capital Improvement Phase 2 

 
•   Staff continues to communicate with Patrick Treanor (CAWD) on Phase 2 assessments 

of plant equipment and planning for the following areas; Influent Pump Station, 
Headworks, Blower Building, Chlor/Dechlor Building, Effluent Building, Digester No. 
1, Digester No. 1 Control Building and Dewatering Building.  

 
 

Meetings Attended 
 
 Monterey County Water Awareness Committee meeting January 10, 2019 at Monterey 

One Water District offices in Monterey.  
 

 Monterey Water Works Association Board meeting January 10, 2019 in Moss Landing. 
 

 Monterey County Water Awareness Committee Strategic planning meeting January 24, 
2019 at Carmel Area Wastewater District Offices in Carmel.  
 

 Discharge Permit Violations 
 

•   No Reclamation Permit 93-72 discharge violations for the month of December 2018. 
 
•    No Violations on the NPDES (National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System) 

              62



 
 3 

NPDES Number CA0047996, Order No. R3-2014-0012 for the month of December 
2018. 

  
 
FUNDING 
 
N/A-Informational item only 
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
Edward Waggoner 
 
 

         
 
 
         
 
  

 

              63



STAFF REPORT 
 

 

To:    Board of Directors 

 

From:    Mark Dias, Safety and 

Regulatory Compliance Administrator 

 

Date:    February 28, 2019 

 

Subject:  Monthly Report (for January 2019) 

 

RECOMMENDATION  

 

Receive Report‐ Informational only; no action required.  

 
 
DISCUSSION  

 

Safety & Training 

Jan 10 ‐ Tailgate training. Jason Veile, Operator, gave a presentation on Strains and 

Sprains. Using CSRMA training materials, Jason highlighted proper lifting techniques 

and the importance of warm ups and stretches to reduce these types of injuries. Jason is 

also on the Wellness Committee and regularly leads plant crews in morning stretches.  

 

Jan 17 ‐ Tailgate training.  Because the Carmel River was predicted to flood later in the 

day, a flood Response briefing was held in lieu of a worker safety topic. Safety and 

Compliance Administrator Mark Dias (S/C Admin Dias) presented information from 

NOAA weather and the County Office of Emergency Services. While the plant would 

not be impacted, management gave direction on preparing for different scenarios.    

See Emergency Flood Response item below. 

 

Jan 24 ‐ Tailgate training. Mark Napier, Collections, gave a presentation on “close calls.” 

Often when an accident nearly occurs but no one is injured it may not be reported. 

Whenever there is a close call everyone should be informed since it may happen again 

but with an injury.  The more information we have the more improvements can be 

made. S/C Admin Dias emphasized that just as much, or more, good information can be 

gleaned from a close call than an actual accident. Reporting close calls is a key element 

in establishing a safety culture.  Safety culture was a topic introduced in December and 

will be a focus moving forward. 

              64



 

Jan 31‐ Monthly Safety Topic. S/C Admin Dias presented the annually required review 

of CAWD’s Blood Borne Pathogen Policy. This policy was updated in 2018 to reflect the 

most recent Cal OSHA regulations. Exposure to blood borne pathogens in the 

wastewater industry is much less likely than the high‐risk medical field for example.  

However, the job is not risk free and the policy identifies the top exposure hazards and 

lays out specific engineering and administrative controls to preempt exposures in the 

first place.  The policy is available to staff in hard copy, on a shard computer drive and 

on a shared intranet webpage (SharePoint). 

 

Ongoing Safety Improvements 

During January Maintenance Superintendent Foley and S/C Admin Dias continued to 

implement safety improvements and seek input from the operations crew and Safety 

Committee. Many of the physical safety improvements are projects extending over 

weeks or months.  Activities in January included: 

 Fall Safety – vault hatches. Background; As described in previous reports, six vault 

hatches were identified for replacement with built‐in fall protection and greater ease 

of operation. Update; The hatches were delivered to the site in mid‐January. A 

contractor has been selected to place and secure them. Interim safety protocols for 

use of the existing hatches have been implemented. 

 Respiratory Safety – gas levels at the Calle La Cruz lift station (Ribera Road). 

Background; As described in previous reports, this lift station receives wastewater 

from the Carmel Highlands. The longer travel‐time allows the anaerobic generation 

of dangerous hydrogen sulfide gas. Gas levels were high enough to warrant locking 

the hatch and preventing access until the gas could be mitigated.  Four options were 

identified and are being tried in order of increasing cost. The first option –using 

cakes of potassium permanganate—was ineffective. The second option ‐‐ using a 

biological treatment‐‐ was also ineffective. The third option, dosing liquid calcium 

nitrate, was started in December.  Update; In December the hydrogen sulfide 

readings showed the most promise of any efforts so far.  While the readings were 

still above action levels they had dropped significantly. A higher dosing rate was 

used starting in mid‐January and the results showed improvement. Monthly 

tracking continuing. 

 Planned installation of additional fire hydrants. Background; As described in 

previous reports, during the Fire Department walk‐through in June it was noted that 

the plant only has two fire hydrants. Both are located on the south side of the site. 

While not required by the Fire Department, two additional locations were identified 

where existing plumbing could be retrofitted with fire hydrants. The locations are 

much closer to areas where firefighting may be needed such as the office buildings, 

the shop, the collections building and the Pad. Update: The leaking isolation valve 

was replaced by CAWD staff. In January the decision was made to have CAWD 

              65



complete the repairs in house after obtaining the parts from a local vendor. Parts 

have been ordered.  

    

 Bulk aqueous ammonia system repairs.  Background; As first described in the 

October report, CAWD receives bulk deliveries of 19% aqueous ammonia 

approximately once per month. The bulk tank is located outdoors on the south side 

of the tertiary building with permanent secondary containment. Newly 

implemented gas monitoring equipment showed that ammonia vapors escape out of 

the tank lid during the filling process.  Operations staff have consistently been 

required to wear respirators during deliveries. Until the system is improved, an 

Interim Operating Procedure (IOP) has been promulgated and deliveries are 

overseen by the Safety Officer. Per the IOP staff are now required to remotely 

monitor the tank level at a safe distance using the wireless SCADA system rather 

than stand near the tank during filling. CAWD staff intends to retrofit the piping 

and venting components rather than purchasing a replacement system. Update: In 

December a sensitive pressure gauge was installed on the tank to determine the 

actual pressures generated during filling. The plant engineer needs this data to 

calculate specifications to retrofit piping, connections and relief valves. This gauge 

was closely monitored during a January delivery.  The results showed that the tank 

lid cannot hold even 1/5th of 1 PSI and ammonia levels were very high around the 

lid. The lid will be sealed in February and the pressure will be monitored again. 

Monthly tracking continuing. 

 

 

Emergency Response (Flood) Preparations 

In December Superintendent Foley and S/C Admin Dias attended a Winter Storm 

Preparedness Workshop hosted by the Monterey County Office of Emergency Services 

(OES). OES staff highlighted their upgraded website and demonstrated its multiple, 

real‐time tracking resources. In January and February two winter storms provided the 

opportunity for CAWD staff to use these resources and closely track the timing and 

intensity of flood surges down the river and past the plant.   

The storms of January 16/17 brought the Carmel River above its minor flood 

stage for roughly two hours. The storms of Feb 3/4 brought the lower Carmel River just 

above minor flood stage for less than an hour. Events of this size do not impact the 

interior of the plant or plant operations in any way.  

At the peak of the larger January event about one foot of water crossed the 

lowest section of the plant access road for roughly 90 minutes. At the peak of the 

smaller February event, about one inch of water crossed the lowest section of the plant 

access road for about 15 minutes. For both storms the peak levels at the plant occurred 

six hours after the peak at the Robles Del Rio gauge, and one hour after the peak at the 

lower Via Mallorca gauge. The OES website can graph these two gauges, the lagoon 

              66



level, actual rainfall and predicted rainfall all on one page. To prepare for future events, 

the website data was documented along with simultaneous pictures and videos of 

water levels on the road and outside the plant levees.  

S/C Admin Dias and plant management were placed on the County OES “push” 

list for events impacting our local area (including tsunamis). The system worked and 

we received flood notifications via texts and email.  Overall staff now has a much 

higher level of confidence in predicting the timing and intensity of future flood events.   

 

 

Tours and Outreach 

No tours were given in January. Multiple tours have been scheduled for February, 

March and April.  

 

 

Injuries; first aid responses; worker compensation claims 

There were no worker’s comp claims in January. OSHA tracks injuries on a calendar 

year basis. The first matrix of the year is below. 

 

  Work Related Injuries and Illnesses for 2019 Reporting Year  

TYPE 

New  

Incidents 

(Month) 

Total  

Incidents (Year)

Total Days Away 

from Work 

(Year) 

Total Days of Job 

Restriction 

(Year) 

Cumulative days 

lost  

(Year) 

OSHA 

Injuries 
0  0  0  0  0 

OSHA 

Illnesses 
0  0  0  0  0 

Other WC 

Claims 
0  0  0  0  0 

First Aid 

(non‐OSHA) 
0  0  0  0  0 

 

 

FUNDING 

N/A‐ Informational item only 

              67



STAFF REPORT 
 

 

To:    Board of Directors 

 

From:    Chris Foley, Maintenance Superintendent 

 

Date:    February 28, 2019 

 

Subject:  Monthly Maintenance Report – January 2019 

 

RECOMMENDATION  
 
Receive Report‐ Informational only; no action required.  

 
 
DISCUSSION  
 
Maintenance Projects in Progress 

 

 Update 2: Parts were received, and the work is scheduled for January. The 

microturbine gas compressor failed. Parts were received for gas compressor. The 

new motor is still on order. 

 

 The exhaust components for the new 65kilowatt microturbine are still being 

procured by the vendor. The vendor required engineering review and 

verification from the microturbine manufacturer to ensure the installation is 

correct.  

 

Upcoming Maintenance Projects 

 

 The tertiary system annual preventative maintenance will be completed along 

with replacement of any components that require a shutdown. This includes the 

reclaim flowmeter and some programmable logic controller components. This 

work is scheduled when the tertiary system will be offline in February.  

 

 The new vault hatches for the dewatering and influent area have arrived. 

Mathew’s Mechanical is scheduled to install the new hatches in late February. 

This will provide improved fall protection for staff when working around open 

hatches.  

              68



 

 

Staff Development 

 

 Training on the new purchasing software was provided for administrative staff 

and the new system is being utilized.  

 

Work Order Metrics 

       
Preventive Maintenance      

      
Total Work Orders Generated      162

Total Work Orders Closed/Done      100

Total Work Orders Still Open      62

Percentage of Work Orders Completed      61.73%

      
Corrective Maintenance      
 

        

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

  Emergency  6       

  Critical   11       

  Urgent  12       

  Routine  16       
 

 

FUNDING 

N/A‐ Informational item only 

              69



STAFF REPORT 
 

 

To:                  Board of Directors 
 

From:             Rachél Lather, Principal Engineer 
 

Date:               February 28, 2019 
 

Subject:          General Engineering 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Receive Report‐ Informational only; no action required. 
 
 
DISCUSSION 

This report is provided to update the Board on current engineering activities. 

 

General Engineering 
 

Standard Plans and Specifications have been updated based on comments received at 

the last committee meeting.  The update to the Plumbing Ordinance has been reviewed 

by our attorney and a final draft of the updated ordinance is available for review. 

Finally, our attorney has recommended that we adopt an Administrative Penalty 

Ordinance.  The Principal Engineer is currently working on a draft of that Ordinance. 

 

The Principal Engineer has received a proposal for assistance with the Sewer System 

Management Plan (SSMP) update and audit from Causey Consulting.  This firm is well 

known for their expertise in SSMP development and provided services to CAWD in 

the past.  This work will commence after July 1, 2019. 

 
 

The Principal Engineer is continuing to work with property owners along Corona 

Road to start the process necessary to form an Assessment District.  The property 

owners are currently circulating a petition requesting that our Board proceed with 

establishing an assessment district for the project.   

 

The Principal Engineer has been in contact with Rich Larsen regarding his interest in 

connecting to the CAWD sewer system.  Mr. Larsen will need to provide plans for the 

connection, including crossing under Highway 1 and complete the LAFCO application. 

 Once those two documents are received, the Principal Engineer can approach CalTrans 

for a permit and LAFCO to start the annexation process. 
 
 

              70



Since December 14, 2018, the Principal Engineer and GM have been negotiating an 

agreement with MNS Engineers for the Yankee Point Project design contract.  MNS 

has signed the agreement and we are waiting for the funding in order to issue a notice 

to proceed to the consultant. 

 

FUNDING 

N/A‐ Informational item only 

 

 

 

 

              71



Project 
Number

Task Name Manager Start Finish Cost

Projects Implementation Plan Schedule Thu 3/1/18 Tue 6/30/26 $20,238,000.00

Treatment Plant Projects Thu 3/1/18 Tue 6/30/26 $13,529,000.00

18-01 Phase 2 - WWTP Rehabilitation Project Treanor Mon 4/30/18 Thu 5/13/21 $8,875,000.00

In House Projects Thu 3/1/18 Tue 6/30/26 $4,214,000.00

18-02 Ops Building Historian and Reporting Foley Mon 4/2/18 Tue 1/15/19 $140,000.00

18-03 CMMS Improvements Foley Wed 7/11/18 Fri 2/1/19 $100,000.00

18-12 NPDES Permit Application (PARTIAL 
RECLAMATION)

Waggoner Thu 3/1/18 Mon 12/31/18 $0.00

18-13 Blower PLC Mods Foley Tue 6/26/18 Fri 11/2/18 $0.00

18-04 PLC Replacement Project (PARTIAL 
RECLAMATION)

Treanor/Foley Fri 5/4/18 Tue 6/25/19 $400,000.00

18-09 Secondary Clarifier No. 1 Rehab Waggoner Thu 7/5/18 Tue 6/11/19 $100,000.00

Outfall Lagoon Crossing Repairs Treanor Tue 1/1/19 Fri 3/1/19 $300,000.00

Critical Process Onsite Flood Mitigations Treanor Tue 7/2/19 Tue 6/30/20 $0.00

18-05 PLC/SCADA Programming Foley Thu 7/5/18 Wed 4/29/20 $300,000.00

18-06 Disinfection Analyzer Project (PARTIAL 
RECLAMATION)

Waggoner/Young Mon 1/7/19 Tue 11/19/19 $150,000.00

18-07 Digester No. 1 & Old No. 2 Purging and 
Cleaning

Waggoner/Young Fri 3/1/19 Wed 10/2/19 $150,000.00

Effluent Building Wet Well Mixing Waggoner Mon 2/3/20 Fri 8/13/21 $60,000.00

1 Water Corrosion Control Waggoner Fri 7/12/19 Thu 6/25/20 $30,000.00

Operations Bldg Basement Renovation Waggoner Mon 2/3/20 Fri 8/13/21 $50,000.00

Cart Charging and Parking Foley Mon 2/3/20 Fri 8/13/21 $50,000.00

18-08 Standby Power Reliability Project Treanor Mon 10/8/18 Fri 10/23/20 $730,000.00

18-10 Aeration Basin Improvements (PARTIAL 
RECLAMATION)

Waggoner Wed 6/27/18 Wed 4/29/20 $140,000.00

18-28 Perimeter Tree Plan and Implementation Treanor Mon 7/1/19 Tue 6/30/26 $0.00

Plant Fence Replacement TBD Mon 7/1/19 Tue 2/16/21 $150,000.00

Cathodic Protection Testing Treanor Wed 7/3/19 Tue 6/30/20 $30,000.00

Lunch Room MCC Replace with Panelboard Foley Mon 1/18/21 Tue 6/22/21 $140,000.00

Chlorine Contact Pipe Gallery Repairs Treanor Fri 1/1/21 Mon 3/29/21 $44,000.00

Plant Paving, Vault Lids, Drainage Treanor Mon 3/2/20 Fri 11/26/21 $50,000.00

Lagoon Crossing Rehabilitation Treanor Thu 7/1/21 Tue 8/30/22 $1,000,000.00

RAS Pump/Piping Rehab Treanor Mon 3/29/21 Mon 8/23/21 $100,000.00

Treatment Plant Studies & O&M Manuals Treanor Tue 4/3/18 Wed 7/24/24 $440,000.00

18-14 Sea Level Rise Study Treanor Tue 4/3/18 Tue 12/4/18 $220,000.00

Coastal Hazards Monitoring Plan Treanor Fri 11/1/19 Tue 9/1/20 $35,000.00

Life Expectancy Analysis Treanor Wed 9/2/20 Fri 7/2/21 $35,000.00

Online O&M Manual Treanor Wed 9/1/21 Wed 7/24/24 $150,000.00

Treatment Plant Projects

Phase 2 - WWTP Rehabilitation Project

Ops Building Historian and Reporting

CMMS Improvements

ermit Application (PARTIAL RECLAMATION)

Blower PLC Mods

PLC Replacement Project (PARTIAL RECLAMATION)

Secondary Clarifier No. 1 Rehab

Outfall Lagoon Crossing Repairs

Critical Process Onsite Flood Mitigations

PLC/SCADA Programming

Disinfection Analyzer Project (PARTIAL RECLAMATION)

Digester No. 1 & Old No. 2 Purging and Cleaning

Effluent Building Wet Well Mixing

1 Water Corrosion Control

Operations Bldg Basement Renovation

Cart Charging and Parking

Standby Power Reliability Project

Aeration Basin Improvements (PARTIAL RECLAMATION)

Perimeter Tree Plan and Implementation

Plant Fence Replacement

Cathodic Protection Testing

Lunch Room MCC Replace w

Chlorine Contact Pipe Gallery 

Plant Paving, Vault Lids, Draina

RAS Pump/Pip

Treatment Plant Studies

Sea Level Rise Study

Coastal Hazards Monitoring Plan

Life Expectancy Analysis

H1 H2 H1 H2 H1 H2 H1
2018 2019 2020 20

              72

barringer
Highlight



Project 
Number

Task Name Manager Start Finish Cost

Collections Projects Mon 4/16/18 Tue 6/11/24 $6,144,000.00

18-19 Standard Plans and Specs Update Lather Fri 11/2/18 Thu 2/28/19 $0.00

18-20 Permitting Procedures Streamlining Lauer Thu 8/2/18 Wed 9/26/18 $0.00

18-21 Highlands and Riley Ranch Annexation Lather Thu 8/2/18 Thu 1/24/19 $0.00

18-29 September Ranch Water and Sewer Service Lather Tue 9/25/18 Thu 9/26/19 $0.00

Carmel Valley Manor Sewer Lather Wed 9/26/18 Wed 9/16/20 $0.00

18-16 Highlands H2S Control Lauer Mon 4/16/18 Mon 12/31/18 $0.00

18-27 Highlands FM ARVs Lauer Mon 9/10/18 Mon 12/24/18 $60,000.00

Highlands FM Flushing Lauer Mon 7/6/20 Fri 10/16/20 $75,000.00

Rio Road CIPP Lining Project Lather Mon 7/1/19 Fri 8/28/20 $1,340,000.00

18-18 Pump Station PLC/SCADA Replacement Foley/Lather Wed 7/18/18 Fri 2/14/20 $250,000.00

Carmel Meadows Gravity Sewer Improvements Lather Thu 8/1/19 Wed 6/30/21 $1,294,000.00

18-17 Hatton Canyon Pipe Bursting Lather Wed 5/23/18 Wed 10/20/21 $1,450,000.00

Rancho Canada New Line Lather Wed 11/6/19 Tue 6/11/24 $1,500,000.00

Collections Studies Lauer/Lather Thu 5/24/18 Tue 6/11/19 $175,000.00

18-22 Capacity Study/Asset Management Plan Lauer/Lather Thu 5/24/18 Mon 11/26/18 $100,000.00

18-23 New Connections Master Plan Lauer/Lather Thu 8/30/18 Tue 12/25/18 $0.00

Monte Verde and Bay/Scenic FM Assessment Lauer/Lather Wed 12/26/18 Tue 6/11/19 $75,000.00

Reclamation Projects Wed 5/9/18 Fri 5/29/20 $565,000.00

18-24 Reclamation Sand Filter Integration Project Waggoner Wed 5/9/18 Thu 1/31/19 $200,000.00

18-25 EQ Basin Pump Electrical Foley Mon 10/8/18 Thu 1/17/19 $80,000.00

18-26 RO Pretreatment Acid Tanks and Containment Treanor Fri 6/8/18 Fri 2/28/20 $250,000.00

Reclamation Studies Treanor Mon 7/1/19 Fri 5/29/20 $35,000.00

Collections Pr

Standard Plans and Specs Update

Permitting Procedures Streamlining

Highlands and Riley Ranch Annexation

September Ranch Water and Sewer Service

Carmel Valley Manor Sewer

Highlands H2S Control

Highlands FM ARVs

Highlands FM Flushing

Rio Road CIPP Lining Project

Pump Station PLC/SCADA Replacement

Carmel Meadows Gravity Sewer Improvements

Hatton Canyon Pipe BurstingHatton Canyon Pipe Bursting

Collections Studies

Capacity Study/Asset Management Plan

New Connections Master Plan

Monte Verde and Bay/Scenic FM Assessment

Reclamation Projects

Reclamation Sand Filter Integration Project

EQ Basin Pump Electrical

RO Pretreatment Acid Tanks and Containment

Reclamation Studies

H1 H2 H1 H2 H1 H2 H1
2018 2019 2020 20

              73



STAFF REPORT 
 

 

To:    Board of Directors 

 

From:    Chris Foley, Maintenance Superintendent 

 

Date:    February 28, 2018 

 

Subject:  Mainsaver Purchasing Contract Amendment  

 

RECOMMENDATION  
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors authorize the General Manager to amend a 

contract with Mainsaver in for an additional $6,000 for fiscal year 2018‐19 to implement the 

purchasing contract work flow and provide purchasing reports.  

 
 
DISCUSSION  
 
The District has been focused on implementing a comprehensive asset management 

system. The core of the system is the Mainsaver CMMS (Computerized Maintenance 

Management System) program. The Mainsaver program consists of multiple modules. 

Staff has implemented the Purchasing and Inventory modules and identified two more 

tasks that would improve the system.  

 

The two additional tasks are:  

 

 Purchasing contracts ‐ This task includes discovery, configuration and training of 

work flow requirements to track engineering, chemical and service contracts 

with vendors. The improved contract tracking will consist of one purchase order 

that is applied to a contract and when an invoice is received it will be applied to 

this contract in the purchasing module. This is an improvement on the current 

system because it will automate the contract accounting and provide a system to 

associate all the documents in a database.  

 

 Purchasing Reporting ‐ This task will create standard reports for purchases via 

the Mainsaver software that meet our requirements for public record requests 

and internal budget controls. Onsite training will also be provided.  

 

              74



FUNDING 

 

The original contract for $60,100 was approved at the August 2018 Board Meeting with 

Resolution No.  2018‐35.    The  additional  $6,000  requested  here  is  available  from  the 

Maintenance Department O&M 2018‐19 budget. 

              75



              76



              77



RESOLUTION 2019‐07 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE GENERAL MANAGER TO AMEND THE CONTRACT 

WITH MAINSAVER APPOVED IN AUGUST 2018 BY RESOLUTION NO. 2018‐35 FOR AN 

ADDITIONAL $6,000 FOR FISCAL YEAR 2018‐19 TO IMPLEMENT THE PURCHASING 

CONTRACT WORK FLOW AND PROVIDE PURCHASING REPORTS 

‐oOo‐ 

WHEREAS, the District has been focused on implementing a comprehensive asset 

management system and the core of said system is the Mainsaver CMMS program; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors approved a contract in the amount of $60,100 to 

implement the purchasing a mobile modules; and 

WHEREAS, staff has implemented said modules and identified two more tasks that 

would further improve the system as follows: 

 Purchasing contracts – which includes discovery, configuration and training of 

work flow requirements to track engineering, chemical and service contracts 

with vendors. 

 Purchasing Reporting – which will create standard reports for purchases that 

meet our requirements for public record requests and internal budget controls; 

and 

WHEREAS, the Board is convinced that the addition of these two tasks will benefit the 

District by further refining its CMMS capabilities and work flow. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Carmel Area 

Wastewater District, hereby authorizes the General Manager to enter into a contract 

amendment with Mainsaver for an additional $6,000 to add the tasks specified above for 

Purchasing contracts and Purchasing Reporting. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the Carmel 

Area Wastewater District duly held on February 28, 2019 by the following vote: 

AYES:  BOARD MEMBERS: 

NOES: BOARD MEMBERS: 

ABSENT:  BOARD MEMBERS: 

 

              78



            ________________________________________ 

            President of the Board 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

________________________________________ 

Secretary to the Board 

              79



STAFF REPORT 
 

 

To:    Board of Directors 

 

From:    Chris Foley, Maintenance Superintendent 

 

Date:    February 28, 2019 

 

Subject:  2018‐19 Engineering and Programming Contract Amendment for 

Informative Controls 

 

RECOMMENDATION  
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors authorize the General Manager to amend the 

contract with Informative Controls for an additional amount not to exceed $50,000 for fiscal 

year 2018‐19 for Automation Control and Engineering Services.  
 
DISCUSSION  
 
The District continues the migration of the SCADA (Supervisory Control and Data 

Acquisition) System and upgrade of the PLC (Programmable Logic Controllers) 

hardware and programming.  

 

A critical component of this system is the alarming and notification. Currently the 

alarms from the new and existing equipment are connected to the legacy alarm system. 

This work would migrate the alarms for the new and existing equipment to the alarm 

module in the new SCADA system.  

 

Many of the alarms still exist from retired equipment but are disabled. These alarms 

would be removed as part of the cleanup and migration to the new system.  

 

Reclamation funds were previously allocated as part of the reclamation project when 

the contract was originally approved at the August 2018 board meeting. The focus of 

the work thus far has been improving control and screens for the blower system and 

treatment plant. This additional request would provide funding to continue forward 

with the alarm migration in a parallel path with the work performed on the reclamation 

alarm system and controls.  

 

The reclamation SCADA screens would remain on the legacy software and the 

              80



treatment plant would continue to function on the new software. All of the alarming 

would be through the new software which will provide improved notification and 

descriptions when an alarm is triggered.  

 

By utilizing a “not to exceed” time and material contract, staff is able to issue one 

contract while still managing the budget through the District work order and purchase 

order system.   

 

The 2018‐19 Capital Budget PLC Programming Update project was budgeted for 

$150,000 which $100,000 has already been encumbered. The remaining $50,000 would 

be allocated for this amendment.  

 

 

FUNDING 

 

The original contact of $150,000 was approved at the August 2018 board meeting with 

Resolution No. 2018‐42.  It is shown below as “Request #1”. 

 

CAWD Budget $150K – Request #1 $100K 

Reclamation Budget $50K – Request #1 $50K 

 

This request for an additional $50K is for CAWD and utilizes the remaining budget 

provided for in 2018‐19.  It is shown below as “Request #2”. 

 

CAWD Budget $150K – Request #1 $100K; Request #2 $50K 

Reclamation Budget $50K – Request #1 $50K   

              81



              82



              83



RESOLUTION 2019‐08 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE GENERAL MANAGER TO AMEND THE CONTRACT 

WITH INFORMATIVE CONTROLS FOR AN ADDITIONAL AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED 

$50,000 FOR FISCAL YEAR 2018‐19 FOR AUTOMATION CONTROL AND ENGINEERING 

SERVICES 

‐oOo‐ 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors approved a contract with Informative Controls in an 

amount not to exceed $150,000 for fiscal year 2018‐19 to continue the treatment plant 

Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) and programmable logic controller (PLC) 

upgrades and implement Tertiary PLC improvements; and 

WHEREAS, the District continues the migration of the SCADA system and upgrade of 

the PLC hardware and programming; and 

WHEREAS, there is a need to migrate the alarms for the new and existing equipment to 

the alarm module in the new SCADA system; and 

WHEREAS, the alarms still exist from retired equipment and would be removed as part 

of the cleanup and migration to the new system; and 

WHEREAS, the Board is convinced that this contract will continue to improve alarm 

visibility, data reporting, process control and specific process improvements at the facility.  

Further, Informative Controls is qualified to perform said automation design and programing 

work in a manner that is satisfactory to the District. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Carmel Area 

Wastewater District, hereby authorizes the General Manager to amend the contract with 

Informative Controls for an additional amount not to exceed $50,000 for the fiscal year 2018=19 

to continue with Treatment plant SCADA and PLC upgrades. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the Carmel 

Area Wastewater District duly held on February 28, 2019 by the following vote: 

AYES:  BOARD MEMBERS: 

NOES: BOARD MEMBERS: 

ABSENT:  BOARD MEMBERS 

 

              84



            ________________________________________ 

            President of the Board 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

________________________________________ 

Secretary to the Board 

 

              85



 

 
 
 
 
 

STAFF REPORT 

 
 
To:  Board of Directors 

 

From:  Barbara Buikema, General Manager 

 

Date:  February 28, 2019 

 

Subject:          Reimbursement Resolution – Carmel Valley Manor Project 

 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors approve a resolution declaring its official intent to 
reimburse certain expenditures from the proceeds of debt for the Carmel Valley Manor Sewer 
Project in an amount up to $5.0M. 
 

DISCUSSION 
 
Carmel Valley Manor is a continuing care retirement community located at 8545 Carmel Valley 
road and currently serves 230 residents.  The facility produces approximately 20,000 gallons per 
day of residential wastewater.  They have approached the District with an interest in connecting to 
our system. 
 
Their current septic system is in a precarious state.  Due to the age of their system, maintenance 
activities are being performed on a higher than typical frequency to maintain proper operation and 
performance.  The septic tank is pumped to remove approximately 7,000 gallons of waste on a 
monthly basis with additional maintenance to remove approximately 10,000 gallons of waste 
biannually. 
 
The Carmel Valley Manor engaged MNS Engineers, Inc to perform a feasibility study on 
connecting to CAWD.  They are currently attempting to finalize an agreement for full design with 
MNS.   
 
The preliminary cost estimate from MNS Engineers was $3.3M. We are recommending the 
resolution be for a maximum principal amount of $5M to ensure that it covers any unknowns. 
 

              86



 

FUNDING 
 
Current project maximum estimate is $5.0M for the entire project.  The Carmel Valley Manor is 
currently working on obtaining engineering design work. 
 
The intention is to finance all “public” costs of the project.  That means it would include: 
 

Annexation costs 
Connection fees 
Financing costs 
Environmental 

Engineering Design 
Construction 
Construction Management 
CAWD staff time to manage project 

 

              87



              88



              89



              90



              91



              92



              93



              94



              95



              96



              97



              98



              99



              100



              101



 

991308.1 1  

RESOLUTION NO. 2019-09 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
CARMEL AREA WASTEWATER DISTRICT  

DECLARING ITS OFFICIAL INTENT 
TO REIMBURSE CERTAIN EXPENDITURES 

FROM THE PROCEEDS OF DEBT 

WHEREAS, the Carmel Area Wastewater District (the “District”) intends to pay the 
costs of Carmel Valley Manor Project (the “project costs”); 

WHEREAS, the District anticipates that it will issue debt obligations in the form of a 
loan agreement the payments under which would contain a separately stated interest component 
for the purpose of financing the project costs on a long-term basis; 

WHEREAS, the District’s obligations under the loan agreement will be considered debt 
for federal income tax purposes;  

WHEREAS, the maximum principal amount of such debt expected to be issued to 
finance the project costs is $5,000,000.00; 

WHEREAS, the District expects to pay certain project costs prior to the issuance of the 
debt obligations; and 

WHEREAS, in order to obtain favorable treatment of expenditures of proceeds of the 
debt obligations used to reimburse the District’s prior expenditures, Treasury Regulations 
section 1.150-2 requires the District to declare its official intent to reimburse such prior project 
costs expenditures with proceeds of debt; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors of the Carmel Area 
Wastewater District as follows: 

1. Findings.  The Board hereby finds and determines that the foregoing recitals are 
true and correct. 

2. Official Intent.  The District hereby states that it reasonably expects to reimburse 
its expenditures on project costs with proceeds of debt to be incurred by the District.  The 
foregoing statement is a declaration of official intent that is made under and only for the purpose 
of establishing compliance with the requirements of Treasury Regulations section 1.150-2.  This 
resolution does not bind the District to make any expenditure of project costs or to incur any debt 
for the project costs. 

3. Additional Acts.  The officers of the District, and each of them individually, are 
hereby authorized and directed, to do any and all things and to execute, deliver and perform any 
and all agreements and documents that they deem necessary or advisable in order to effectuate 
the purposes of this resolution.  All actions heretofore taken by the officers of the District that are 
in conformity with the purposes and intent of this resolution are hereby ratified, confirmed and 
approved in all respects. 

              102



 

991308.1 2  

4. Effective Date.  This resolution shall take effect from and after its adoption. 

ADOPTED on February 28, 2019, by the following vote: 

 AYES:  D’Ambrosio, Rachel, Siegfried, Townsend, White 
 
 NOES:  None  
 
 ABSTAIN: None  
 
 ABSENT: None 

 
 
        
President of the Board  

 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
        

Secretary of the Board 

              103



 

 
 
 
 
 

STAFF REPORT 

 
 
To:  Board of Directors 

 

From:  Barbara Buikema, General Manager 

 

Date:  February 28, 2019 

 

Subject:          Reimbursement Resolution Amendment – Corona Road Sewer Project 

 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors approve a resolution declaring and amending its 
official intent to reimburse certain expenditures from the proceeds of debt for the Corona Road 
Sewer Project in an amount up to $3.5M. 
 

DISCUSSION 
 
The District approved a resolution in August 2018 #2018-41 in the amount of $500,000 for this 
project.  At that time, we thought it would simply be a trunk line down Corona Road, or 
approximately 900 ft.  Since then the project has expanded to include a line on Corona Way and 
continue at the top of the hill on Corona Road.  This will enable the project to include roughly 40 
parcels in the project and encourage more of the neighborhood to participate. 
 
The participants held a community meeting on December 20, 2018 and were given the steps 
necessary to create an Assessment District.  At that meeting there were several homeowners 
outside the original area plan that professed an interest in participating.  Additionally, the original 
plan did not consider a line up Corona Way with the intention that homeowners would extend 
individual laterals to Corona Road.   This increased interest from the neighborhood and extension 
of the line has increased the original estimate from $500K to $3.5M. 
 
In order to be both conservative and proactive staff is recommending that we return with a new 
resolution declaring an intent to reimburse expenditures from the project with the proceeds of debt 
in an amount up to $3.5M. 
 
 

              104



 

FUNDING 
 
Current project estimate is roughly $3.5M for the entire project.  The residents are currently working 
on obtaining additional engineering estimates. 
 
The intention is to finance all “public” costs of the project.  That means it would include: 
 

Annexation costs 
Connection fees 
Financing costs 
Environmental 

Engineering Design 
Construction 
Construction Management 
CAWD staff time to manage project 

 

              105



$1

$1

"/
23 ARV

24 FMFI

25 FMFI

Carmel Area Wastewater District - Lower Corona Road Sewer Project

Williams
241061002

1
Williams

241061004
1

Williams
241061005

2

Goldschmidt
241061001

1

Rodgers
241061015

1

Villa
241061014

1Krone
241061011

2

Coyote
241071004

1

Coyote
241071005

1

Ebbit
241071006

Vacant

K. Stewart
241051022

1
L. Stewart

241051020
1L. Stewart

241051021
Vacant

Olson
241051002

1

Hahn
241051013

1

Price
241051014

1

Price
241051015

2

Price
241051010

1

Doner
241051016

2

Short
241051019

1

Roberts
241051018

2

Williams
241051017

1

Keig
241073001

2

Rivera
241072002

1

Keig
241072003

1

Silvestri
241081004

1

Krone
241051011

1

Zendejas
241051012

1

Evered
241051009

1

Daniels
241051027

1

Daniels
241051028

2

Minshall
241051025

1

Lotte
241051003

1

Olson
241051006

1

Silver
241051005

1

Hennessy
241051024

1

Hariri 
241081002

1

Hariri 
241052007

1

Strnad
241052006

1

Alan
241052005

1

Dierker
241052002

1

Hull
241052001

1

Carmel Area Wastewater District | 3945 Rio Rd, Carmel-By-The-Sea, CA 93922 | CAWD.org | January 29, 2019

PS

N
0 500

Feet

I n s e t

L e g e n d

Sewer
PS Pump Station

Interested Parcel

Potential Parcel

Forced Main

Road

Potential Public

CO
RO

NA
 W

AY

HW
Y1

 

CORONA ROAD

SPRUCE W
AY

FERN CANYON ROAD              106



 

991308.1 1  

RESOLUTION NO. 2019-10 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
CARMEL AREA WASTEWATER DISTRICT  

DECLARING ITS OFFICIAL INTENT 
TO REIMBURSE CERTAIN EXPENDITURES 

FROM THE PROCEEDS OF DEBT 

WHEREAS, the Carmel Area Wastewater District (the “District”) intends to pay the 
costs of Corona Road Sewer Project (the “project costs”); 

WHEREAS, the District anticipates that it will issue debt obligations in the form of a 
loan agreement the payments under which would contain a separately stated interest component 
for the purpose of financing the project costs on a long-term basis; 

WHEREAS, the District’s obligations under the loan agreement will be considered debt 
for federal income tax purposes;  

WHEREAS, the maximum principal amount of such debt expected to be issued to 
finance the project costs is $3,500,000.00; 

WHEREAS, the District expects to pay certain project costs prior to the issuance of the 
debt obligations; and 

WHEREAS, in order to obtain favorable treatment of expenditures of proceeds of the 
debt obligations used to reimburse the District’s prior expenditures, Treasury Regulations 
section 1.150-2 requires the District to declare its official intent to reimburse such prior project 
costs expenditures with proceeds of debt; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors of the Carmel Area 
Wastewater District as follows: 

1. Findings.  The Board hereby finds and determines that the foregoing recitals are 
true and correct. 

2. Official Intent.  The District hereby states that it reasonably expects to reimburse 
its expenditures on project costs with proceeds of debt to be incurred by the District.  The 
foregoing statement is a declaration of official intent that is made under and only for the purpose 
of establishing compliance with the requirements of Treasury Regulations section 1.150-2.  This 
resolution does not bind the District to make any expenditure of project costs or to incur any debt 
for the project costs. 

3. Additional Acts.  The officers of the District, and each of them individually, are 
hereby authorized and directed, to do any and all things and to execute, deliver and perform any 
and all agreements and documents that they deem necessary or advisable in order to effectuate 
the purposes of this resolution.  All actions heretofore taken by the officers of the District that are 
in conformity with the purposes and intent of this resolution are hereby ratified, confirmed and 
approved in all respects. 

              107



 

991308.1 2  

4. Effective Date.  This resolution shall take effect from and after its adoption. 

ADOPTED on February 28, 2019, by the following vote: 

 AYES:  D’Ambrosio, Rachel, Siegfried, Townsend, White 
 
 NOES:  None  
 
 ABSTAIN: None  
 
 ABSENT: None 

 
 
        
President of the Board  

 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
        

Secretary of the Board 

              108



 
STAFF REPORT 
 

 

To:    Board of Directors 

 

From:    Barbara Buikema, General Manager 

 

Date:    February 28, 2019 

 

Subject:  September Ranch Potable Water Service  

 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

It is recommended that the Board of Directors approve a resolution authorizing the General 

Manager to:  

 Enter  into  a  contract with  SRT Consultants  for  evaluation of  September 

Ranch Potable Water Service (proposal dated 01‐29‐19), and  

 Approve a Reimbursement Agreement between the District and Clear Peak 

to cover the cost of SRT Consultants proposal and District costs. 

 

DISCUSSION 

 

At the regular September 27, 2018 the Board granted approval for staff to engage a 

consulting engineer with potable water experience to assist in analyzing the costs for 

the District to operate and maintain the September Ranch potable water system with all 

costs to be paid by the project developer, Clear Peak. 

 

Staff solicited proposals from two engineering firms:  Black & Veatch and SRT 

Consultants.  Our intent, as discussed in the September board meeting, was to examine 

a variety of issues relating to September Ranch to ensure the District does its complete 

due diligence.  Our approach was to be essentially two pronged, first an engineering 

scope that would determine costs associated with construction and operation of the 

water system, treatment and distribution, and second, a public policy perspective to 

analyze how a potable water system would mesh with CAWD’s current operations. 

 

The SRT Consultants proposal is approximately 68% of the Black and Veatch proposal.  

Clear Peak has indicated that they preferred the lower cost option.  The SRT 

Consultants proposal does not include a rate study or review of administrative 

requirements to operate a water system parallel to our existing wastewater operations. 

              109



 

Clear Peak has also expressed concern that our efforts not duplicate any of their efforts 

to move the project forward.  To the best of our knowledge, there is no duplication of 

engineering effort in either the Black & Veatch or SRT proposal. 

 

Additionally, on 02‐18‐19 Clear Peak advised the District that they would have a 

“proposal from a rate specialist including Capital Reserves and operating knowledge 

for Water Delivery Systems as well as Systems/Admin support.”  The District does not 

typically allow others to select consultants on its behalf, so this is an unusual approach; 

but it is being brought forward by Clear Peak.  The District is under no obligation to 

accept. 

 

The District has yet to make any commitment to Clear Peak regarding takeover of the 

September Ranch Water Service.  Our intention is to fully analyze the proposal prior to 

returning it to the Board for a decision.  Approval of the SRT Consultants proposal in no 

way obligates the District to provide further service to September Ranch. 

 

FUNDING 

 

The SRT Consultants proposal will be 100% funded by Clear Peak.  The Reimbursement 

Agreement provides for 100% payment up front of SRT contract amount plus a 10% 

contingency.  In addition, the Reimbursement Agreement requires a deposit of $10K for 

CAWD legal fees and admin/engineering work. 

              110



��������� ����	
�������	�����	��������	��������	�	������	����

���������� ������ �������!���������"�#�$%&'&(���%)��*&+,&!�("-#�.�!�/(011������23�4-�5���-� ��5

6

6

6

789:8;<6=>?6=@A>6

6

B8;C8;86B:DEFG86

HF9F;8I6J898KF;6

L8;GFI6M;F86N8OPFQ8PF;6RDOP;DSP6

T>UV6WDX6WX8Y6

L8;GFI?6LM6>T>==6

6

Z[B7\L]̂6ZF_PFGCF;6W89S̀6N8PF;6ZF;aDSF6

6

RF8;6B8;C8;8?6

ZW]LX9O:IP89PODO_IF8OFYPXO:CGDPP̀DO_;X_XO8IPXO:__X;PL8;GFIM;F8N8OPFQ8PF;RDOP;DSPbLMNRX;6 66 66 6 6 66 6 6 6 6 6 66

RDOP;DSPcD9YFPF;GD9D9K8_8P̀dX;Q8;YdX;_;XaDYD9KQ8PF;OF;aDSFPXP̀FZF_PFGCF;W89S̀SXGG:9DP<e66 66 6 6 6 6 6 66 6 6 6 6

NF:9YF;OP89YP̀8PP̀DODO89DG_X;P89PYFSDODX9dX;P̀FRDOP;DSP89YX9FP̀8PQDII;Ff:D;FS8;Fd:I6 6 6 66 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6

;FOF8;S̀89Y_I899D9KeZW]XgF;O<X:X:;Fh_F;iOFD9OP8;i9K89YG898KD9KOG8II_:CIDSQ8PF;O<OPFGO6 6 6 6 6 6 6 66 6 6 6 6 6 6 6

D9L8IDdX;9D8?D9SI:YD9K8O<OPFG8Sf:D;FYC<8Q8OPFQ8PF;8KF9S<eNFQDII8DGPXF9O:;FP̀8P<X:89Y6 6 66 6 666 6 6 6 6 66 6 6 6 6

<X:;BX8;YXdRD;FSPX;Ò8aFP̀F9FSFOO8;<D9dX;G8iX9PXG8EF89D9dX;GFYYFSDODX9;FK8;YD9KP8ED9K6 66 6 6 6 6 66 66 6 6 6 6

XQ9F;ÒD_XdP̀F9FQZF_PFGCF;W89S̀ Q8PF;O<OPFGe]̀F;F8;FG89<OP8EF̀XIYF;O89YDOO:FOdX;66 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6

LMNRPXSX9ODYF;?89YQFXgF;X:;OF;aDSFO8O8;FOX:;SFPX8OODOP<X:QDP̀P̀DOSXG_IFh:9YF;P8ED9Ke66 6 6 6 6 6 666 66 6 6 6 6 6 6

jIF8OFk9Y8l8S̀FY8O:GG8;<XdX:;:9YF;OP89YD9KXdP̀FS:;;F9PODP:8iX9?C8OFYX9X:;789:8;<A@?6 6 66 66 6 66 6 6 6 66 6 6 6

=@A>6GFFi9K?689Y686_;X_XO8I6dX;6P̀F6k;OP6_̀8OF6Xd6;Ff:FOPFY6OF;aDSFOe6

NFIXXEdX;Q8;YPXP̀FX__X;P:9DP<PX8OODOPP̀FRDOP;DSPQDP̀ P̀DODG_X;P89PQX;Eemd<X:;Ff:D;F6 6 6 6 6 66 6 6 6 6 6 6 66 6 6

8YYDiX98ID9dX;G8iX9?_IF8OFSX9P8SPGF8PbUAVc=TAnVopqX;aD8FG8DI?6]89<8rZW]LX9O:IP89POeSXG6e6 6 6 6 66 6 66 6 6 6

]̀89E6<X:6dX;6<X:;6SX9ODYF;8iX9e6

ZD9SF;FI<?6

]89<86s:;XaOE<?6j\6

j;D9SD_8I6

LL̂ W8S̀tI6u8P̀F;?6\Y6N8KKX9F;6 6

6

              111



��������� ����	
�������	�����	��������	��������	�	������	����

���������� ������ �������!���������"�#�$%&'&(���%)��*&+,&!�("-#�.�!�/(011������23�4-�5���-� ��5

6

6

789:8;<8=6>?@AB6C?:8=678=DEA86

F?@G?=H6IJK6ILMJ

6

N=OP8A:6Q@R8=S:?@RE@T6

UB8789:8;<8=>?@ABR8D8VO9;8@:AO@SES:SOW?AO;<E@?XO@OWYZ;?=[8:\=?:8VO:S?@RIIE@AVGSEO@?=H6 6 6 6 666 666 6 6 66 6

BOGSE@TG@E:SK:O:?VVE@TJ]9O:8@X?V@8̂ ?̂:8=S8=DEA8SAO@@8AXO@S_N8=:B8 Ò@REXO@SOWa99=OD?V6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 66 6

b̀cadOW:B8:8@:?XD8SG<REDESEO@;?9eV8R Ê:B:B8fO@:8=8H̀ OG@:HgO?=ROW7G98=DESO=SE@ILMLK66 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 66 66 6

V̀8?=N8?[h8D8VO9;8@:b̀V8?=N8?[dES=8iGE=8R:O<O@R?@RE@S:?VV:B8=8iGE=8RE;9=OD8;8@:S:O6 6 6 6 66 66 6 6 6 6 6 66

9=ODER8̂ ?:8=S8=DEA8:O:B8AO;;G@E:H_aj8=AO@SGVX@T̂ E:B:B8kOA?VaT8@AHlO=;?XO@̀ O;;ESSEO@6 6 66 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6

OWfO@:8=8H̀ OG@:Hbkal̀cdK̀V8?=N8?[B?S=8iG8S:8R:B?:̀?=;8Va=8?C?S:8̂?:8=hES:=EA:b̀aChd6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6

8m9?@RE:SS8=DEA8S:OSG99VĤ ?:8=:O:B8789:8;<8=>?@ABAO;;G@E:H_ àChESAG==8@:VH?9G<VEA6 6 66 6 66 6 6 6 6 66 66 6

?̂S:8̂?:8=GXVE:HE@8mA8VV8@:S:?@RE@T̂ E:B̀ OG@:H?@R7:?:8?@RB?S?T=88R:O8m9?@RE:Ŝ ?S:8̂?:8=6 66 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 66 66 6

S8=DEA8?=8?:OE@AVGR8789:8;<8=>?@AB_ àCh?@RE:SgO?=ROWhE=8A:O=S=8iGE=8?RREXO@?V6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6

E@WO=;?XO@<8WO=8R8AERE@T:O8m9?@RE:SS8=DEA8S:OR=E@[E@T̂ ?:8=_UB8AG==8@:iG8SXO@S?@RESSG8S6 6 66 66 66 6 6 6 6 6 6 6

E@AVGR8K6<G:6?=86@O:6VE;E:8R6:On6

6

o pD?VG?X@T:B88qO=:?@RAOS:OWO<:?E@E@T?@R;?E@:?E@E@T?RO;8SXÂ ?:8=SG99VH98=;E:W=O;6 6 6 6 66 6 6 66 6 6 6 6 6

:B86̀OG@:H6OW6fO@:8=8H6r8?V:B6h89?=:;8@:6br8?V:B6h89?=:;8@:ds6

o pSX;?X@T6:B86A?9E:?V68m98@S8S6?@R6VO@T\:8=;6AOS:S6OW6Ô@E@T6?@R6;?@?TE@T6?6̂?:8=6SHS:8;s6

o pS:?<VESBE@T6:B86@88R6WO=6?@H6̀aCh6S:?t@T6?RREXO@Ss6

o pD?VG?X@T6:B86SG99VH6SGS:?E@?<EVE:H6?@R6:=8?:;8@:6W8?SE<EVE:H6OW6:B869=O9OS8R6SOG=A8Ss66

o h8:8=;E@E@T69O:8@X?V6O9XO@S6WO=6@8?=<H68;8=T8@AH6SG99VH6AO@@8AXO@Ss6

o u@D8SXT?X@T6?@H6V8T?VVH\=8iGE=8R6AB?@T8S6:O6:B86̀aCh6gO?=R6OW6hE=8A:O=Ss6?@R6

o Q@R8=S:?@RE@T6:B869OSSE<V86̂?:8=6=?:86S:=GA:G=86?@R6E;9VEA?XO@S6OW6̂?:8=6?qO=R?<EVE:H_6

6

7AO986OW6CO=[6

7>U9=O9OS8S:B8WOVVÔE@TSAO98OWS8=DEA8S:O9=ODER8̀aCĥ E:BE@WO=;?XO@E:@88RS:OR8:8=;E@8?6 6 6 6 66 66 6 6 6 66 66 66

9?:BWO=̂?=RWO=9=ODERE@T\O=@O:9=ODERE@T\̂ ?:8=S8=DEA8:O789:8;<8=>?@AB_aRREXO@?V̂O=[;?H6 6 6 666 6 66 6 66 6 6 6 6 6

<8=8iGE=8R<H7>UO=O:B8=SK?@R̂ 8B?D8;?R8?@8qO=::OBETBVETB::BOS8=8AO;;8@R?XO@S<8VÔK6 6 6 66 6 6 6 6 66 66 6 6 6 6

B̂8=869OSSE<V8_66

6

vwxyz{z|z}~����w���~z������z

7>U ÊVV=8DE8̂ :B8?D?EV?<V8;?:8=E?VSW=O; V̀8?=N8?[?@RT?:B8=?RREXO@?VE@WO=;?XO@:B=OGTB6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6

;88X@TŜ E:B:B8̀OG@:H�kal̀c_UB8E@WO=;?XO@T?:B8=8RRG=E@T:BES:?S[̂ EVV<8GS8R:O8SX;?:8:B86 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 66 66 6 6

9=O<?<V8AOS:OWÔ@E@T?@RO98=?X@T:B8̂ ?:8=SHS:8;?@R:OER8@XWH?@H8?=VHESSG8Ŝ E:BO<:?E@E@T?6 66 6 6 6 6 6 6 66 6 6 6 6 6 66

RO;8SXÂ ?:8=SG99VH98=;E:_7>Û EVV?VSOER8@XWHT?9SE@:B8?D?EV?<V8E@WO=;?XO@?@R:O9EAS:B?:6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 66 6 6 6 6 6 6

;?H6@88R6WG=:B8=68m9VO=?XO@_66UB86E@WO=;?XO@6=8DE8̂ 6̂EVV6E@AVGR86:B86WOVVÔE@Tn6

6

o aD?EV?<V86A?9E:?V6AOS:S6WO=6:B86SHS:8;6

o N=8DEOGS6SG99VH6?@R6R8;?@R6S:GRE8S6

o U=8?:;8@:6SHS:8;6AO@A89:G?V6R8SET@6

o 7OG=A86̂?:8=6iG?VE:H6R?:?6

o p;8=T8@AH6SG99VH6O9XO@S6

6

N?T86I6OW6�6              112



��������� ����	
�������	�����	��������	��������	�	������	����

���������� ������ �������!���������"�#�$%&'&(���%)��*&+,&!�("-#�.�!�/(011������23�4-�5���-� ,�5

6

6

789:8;<8=6>?@AB6C?:8=678=DEA86

F?@G?=H6IJK6ILMJ

6

N O@HP8D8QR98=9Q?@STR=B?@PQE@U@8VAR@@8AWR@SK?@P?:VB?:S:?U8RT9=RX8A:6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6

P8D8QR9;8@:6VEQQ6YOCZ6:?[86RD8=6:B86V?:8=6E@T=?S:=GA:G=86

6

\]̂_̀]abĉ]defghijgklmfmnokipqmrnjiglqpfsjipjitunsjisnomkrjniofvjfwkiprnjpfirjsxtkyujiz z zz z zz z z zz z zz

kvkjlk{lfzjisnomkrjni|z

z

}~��̂]�]��ba���a�d��fofgnmmfiprhkr����fitktfkinqrujpflftklgnqiuflrnpfrfomjifjskix� � z z z z z z z z zz zz z

ghkitfurnjru�nkopns�jofgrnouuroqgrqof{fof�qjofpqynif�ykipjitufovjgfurnjiglqpfrhf�fyrfm{fozzz zz z zz z z z zz z z z

�kighzwkrfozuxurfm|zz

6

�������������������� � ���¡��¢��£�¤¥¦§¦̈��¦©�¤����¢§¦̈�¢ª��«�¢���¬�¢�®�

S̄E@U?D?EQ?<Q8E@TR=;?WR@T=R;°?S[M?@PRG=[@RVQ8PU8RTSE;EQ?=V?:8=SHS:8;SE@:B8S:?:8K7>°VEQQ6 6 6 6 66 6 6 66 6 6 66 6 6 6 6

8SW;?:8:B8A?9E:?Q?@P=8AG==E@UARS:SRTRV@E@U?@PR98=?W@U:B8789:8;<8=>?@ABV?:8=SHS:8;±6 6 6 6 6 66 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6

°B86ARS:6?@?QHSES6ES6?@WAE9?:8P6:R68D?QG?:8²6

6

N ³98=?WR@SK6;?E@:8@?@A8K6?@P6=89Q?A8;8@:6RT6PES:=E<GWR@6SHS:8;6?SS8:S6

N ³98=?WR@SK6;?E@:8@?@A8K6?@P6=89Q?A8;8@:6RT6:=8?:;8@:6SHS:8;6?SS8:S6

N ³98=?:R=6?@P6R:B8=6S:?́6=8µGE=8;8@:S6

N ¶R@E:R=E@U6?@P6=89R=W@U6

N ·RV8=6=8µGE=8;8@:S6

6

°B8=8SGQ:SRT:BES:?S[VEQQ<89=RDEP8P:RYOCZE@?TR=;?::B?:;?H<8UED8@:R?9=RT8SSER@?Q=?:86 66 6 6 6 6 66 666 6 6 6 6 666 6 6

AR@SGQ:?@:6:R6P8D8QR96?6V?:8=6=?:86S:GPH±6

6

\]̂_̀]abĉ]defghijgklmfmnokipqm rnjiglqpfljifjrfmgnurfurjmkrf̧wojrrfikuuqmyrjniu̧kipz z z z z z z z z z z z

¹º»xfkozljsf»gxglfzgnurzkiklxujuznszifwzwkrfozuxurfm|z

z

}~��̂]�]��ba���a�d��fofgnmmfiprhkr����uff¼rhfufovjgfunskyonsfuujniklokrfgniuqlrkirrn� � z z z z z z zzz z z zz

kpvjufniokrfuroqgrqofnyrjniukipyonvjpfyofljmjikoxfurjmkrfunsrhfgnurnswkrfoufovjgfrnz z z z z z z z zz z zz z zz

�fyrfm{foz�kighzgqurnmfou|zz

6

�����½���¬¾®®����£���®��¢§¿�«�¢���¬¾�������®§¢�À���§¿�¢§�¦�

Á:ES=8AR;;8@P8P:B?:YOCZK?S:B89R:8@W?QRV@8=RT:B8789:8;<8=>?@ABV?:8=SHS:8;K9Q?@S:R66 6 6 66 6 6 66 6 6 6 6 6 66

?99QHPE=8A:QHTR=:B8PR;8SWAV?:8=SG99QH98=;E:VE:B:B8YRG@:HRT¶R@:8=8HÂ8?Q:BZ89?=:;8@:±6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 66 6 6 6

°B8YRG@:HRT¶R@:8=8HESP8Q8U?:8P<H:B87:?:8C?:8=>8SRG=A8SYR@:=RQÃR?=PZEDESER@RTZ=E@[E@U6 66 66 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 66 6

C?:8=:RESSG8V?:8=SG99QH98=;E:STR=V?:8=SHS:8;SG9:RIÄLAR@@8AWR@S±OQ:BRGUBYQ8?=·8?[B?S66 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 66 6 6 6 6 6 6

E@PEA?:8P:B?::B8HVEQQP8QED8=?TGQQH98=;EÅ8PV?:8=SHS:8;KE:ESBEUBQHQE[8QH:B?::B8Â8?Q:B6 6 6 6 66 6 6 6 666 6 6 6 6 6

Z89?=:;8@:VEQQ=8µGE=8:B?::B8V?:8=SG99QH98=;E:?@P?QQ?SSRAE?:8PPRAG;8@:S<8P8D8QR98P?@P6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 66 6 6 6 6 6

SG<;EÅ8P6<H6:B86R98=?W@U6?U8@AH±66

6

°B898=;E:?99QEA?WR@9=RA8SSESV8QQÆG@P8=S:RRP<H7>°?@PYRG@:HRÇAE?QSK?Q<8E:8È:8@SED8±°B86 6 6 66 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6

9G=9RS8RT:BES:?S[ES:RSG;;?=EÉ8:B8?99QEA?WR@9=RA8SSSR:B?:YOCZ?@PE:SÃR?=PRTZE=8A:R=S66 6 666 6 6 6 66 6 6 66 66 6

6

·?U86Ê6RT6Ë6              113



��������� ����	
�������	�����	��������	��������	�	������	����

���������� ������ �������!���������"�#�$%&'&(���%)��*&+,&!�("-#�.�!�/(011������23�4-�5���-� 5�5

6

6

789:8;<8=6>?@AB6C?:8=678=DEA86

F?@G?=H6IJK6ILMJ

6

G@N8=O:?@N:B8O:89O?@NG@A8=:?E@P8OQE:BR<:?E@E@S:B8Q?:8=OG99TH98=;E:UVR9=RDEN8:BEO6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6

OG;;?=HK7>VQETT;88:QE:B:B8WRG@:HX8?T:BY89?=:;8@:?@NZ[\W]?@N:B8@9=RDEN8?@8OP;?:8N6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 66 6

T8D8T6R̂68_R=:6:R69=89?=86:B86̂RTTRQE@S̀6

6

a [T:8=@?PD8O6?@?THOEOK6Ê6=8bGE=8N6

a C?:8=6OG99TH698=;E:6?99TEA?PR@6

a V8AB@EA?TK6c?@?S8=E?TK6?@N6\E@?@AE?T6dVc\e6?OO8OO;8@:6̂R=;6

a f8=;E:6?99TEA?PR@6:8AB@EA?T6=89R=:6

6

ghijkhlmnihopqrstuvswxyryz{wu|}y~}yyw{v�vu��tr|zyr~�vs�w�r{~}��x��r{yv��{zsr~~�z{����p � � � � � � � � � � �

�z��{z�v|r��w�r{�~r{�vsr��z��r��ry�r{��wust�wu|�r~�vyw�vu���tr�xr�rx�z��r��z{���z�szy�xr�r��tr��z{��6

6

WRO:6f=R9RO?T6

7>V69=R9RO8O6AR;9T8P@S6:B86:?O�O6N8OA=E<8N6?<RD86̂R=6:B86̂RTTRQE@S6TG;96OG;6̂88U6

6

����� ����

M6�6�@̂R=;?PR@6>8DE8Q6 �I�KLLL6

I6�6f=R<?<T86WRO:6R̂6]Q@E@S6?@N6]98=?P@S6:B86C?:8=67HO:8;6 ��IKLLL6

�6�67G;;?=H6R̂6C?:8=6f8=;E:6[99TEA?PR@6f=RA8OO6 �MLKLLL6

VR:?T6\886 ���KLLL6

6

66

6

f?S86 6R̂6 6              114



 

1 
 

 
REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT 

 
COSTS FOR FEASIBILITY 

STUDIES RELATED TO PROPOSED PROVISION OF 
WATER SERVICES TO SEPTEMBER RANCH BY 

CARMEL AREA WASTEWATER DISTRICT 
 
 

          THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into on ____________ ___, 2019, by and 
between Clear Peak Development LLC (September Ranch Development), hereinafter referred to 
as “Developer,” and the Carmel Area Wastewater District, a special district organized under the 
laws of the State of California, hereinafter referred to as “CAWD,” as follows: 

 
Recitals  

 
          A.   September Ranch is located within the current district boundaries of CAWD, and 
Developer plans to construct dwellings on 73 market-rate lots in addition to 22 inclusionary 
housing units on the 891 acre property in Monterey County, hereinafter referred to as the 
“Project.”  CAWD will be providing wastewater collection and treatment services to the Project. 
 
          B.   Developer has requested CAWD to consider providing domestic water service to the 
Project as well.  CAWD does not presently provide any water services, but is willing to consider 
providing water service as requested. 
 
 C.   CAWD, in the exercise of its due diligence and to determine the feasibility of 
providing the requested water service, will need to first investigate the feasibility of providing 
water services to the Project, to include studies regarding, among other matters, permitting, 
staffing, engineering, testing, maintenance, rate structure, billing, cash flow, economic viability 
and any related legal issues.  To ensure that its current wastewater collection and treatment 
ratepayers are in no event impacted by the cost of these studies, CAWD must be fully paid and 
reimbursed for any and all such costs and for CAWD staff time, further consultant and other 
study determined as necessary by CAWD, and legal support. 
 
          D.   CAWD has solicited, in conjunction with Developer, bids for completion of the 
studies described above.  Two have been received, one from Black and Veatch (“B&V”) and one 
from SRT Consultants (“SRT”).  CAWD has informed Developer that CAWD prefers the B&V 
bid because it includes analysis of items CAWD considers critical, some of which items are not 
part of the SRT proposal.  It is therefore likely that upon return of the SRT study, CAWD may 
very well determine that it is necessary to solicit additional studies, for which Developer must 
pay and reimburse CAWD.  Notable among the additional studies, if required, will be rate and 
associated studies to confirm to CAWD’s satisfaction that there will be revenues adequate to 
fully fund all operation, maintenance and all other costs associated with CAWD’s provision of 
water services to the Project, and to assure that no portion of such costs will be paid for by or 
will negatively impact CAWD’s ratepayers for wastewater services.   
 

              115



 

2 
 

           
Terms and Conditions 

 
           In consideration of the mutual promises contained herein, CAWD and Developer agree to 
the following terms and conditions: 
 
1. Retention of SRT.   CAWD shall retain SRT to perform the services described in its 
proposal dated January 29, 2019, consisting of four pages, subject: September Ranch Water 
Service, attached hereto, marked Exhibit A, and made a part hereof by this reference.  

 2.   Developer Payment.   a) Upon execution of this Reimbursement Agreement, and prior 
to CAWD finally retaining SRT as provided in Section 1, above, Developer shall deliver and pay 
to CAWD $67,000.00, the “total fee” set out for SRT performance in the attached proposal, plus 
an additional $6,700.00 in anticipation of possible adjustments to the SRT scope of work.  
Failure to make such payments within 20 days of execution shall result in termination of this 
Reimbursement Agreement.    

b)   Upon execution of this Reimbursement Agreement Developer shall deliver and pay to 
CAWD $10,000 as reimbursement for staff and legal costs incurred to date of execution hereof 
and as a deposit on estimated CAWD costs for the duration of this Reimbursement Agreement.  
In the event that the deposit balance falls below $2,000 CAWD shall notify Developer of the 
amount of additional deposit required to have CAWD continue to provide staff, legal and other 
services in furtherance of the request to provide water service to Developer.  Developer shall pay 
the required amount within 10 days of notification.  Failure to make such payment shall result in 
termination of this Reimbursement Agreement. 
 
3.          Additional Studies; Payment.   As noted in the Recitals above, CAWD will likely require 
additional studies.  Whether such additional studies are required shall be in the sole discretion of 
CAWD.  If CAWD determines that additional studies are required, CAWD shall so notify 
Developer, and Developer shall within 20 days of notification deliver and pay to CAWD the 
estimated costs of the additional studies.  Until payment is made, CAWD will not commit to and 
will not proceed with the studies.  Failure of Developer to make payment within 20 days of 
notification to pay and deliver same shall result in termination of this Reimbursement 
Agreement. 

 
4. Settlement of Costs.   Following termination of this Agreement CAWD shall ascertain 
any balance due from or to Developer from the amounts previously paid or deposited, and either 
notify Developer of any amount due or refund the unused balance of any payment or deposit.  
Any amount due to either party shall be paid within 20 days after termination. 
 
5.   Term.   This Reimbursement Agreement shall commence on the execution hereof by both 
parties and shall terminate on the earlier of a) termination as provided in Section 2 or Section 3 
above, or b) completion of all studies required by CAWD and CAWD’s determination to either 
provide or decline to provide domestic water services to the Project.  
 
6.   CAWD Retains Discretion.   Nothing set out in this Reimbursement Agreement shall be 
construed as a limitation on CAWD’s discretion to determine whether the Project is feasible or 

              116



 

3 
 

infeasible.  If infeasible, CAWD shall decline to provide water services as requested.  If feasible 
and CAWD chooses to proceed, the rights and obligations of CAWD and Developer will be set 
out in an agreement or agreements to be negotiated between the parties following termination of 
this Reimbursement Agreement.  Entering into this Reimbursement Agreement shall not be 
construed to indicate or imply any guarantee or assurance that CAWD will determine to provide 
water services following its due diligence as informed by the studies referenced herein, or 
following any negotiations between the parties for further agreement or agreements. 
 
7.   Modification.   This Reimbursement Agreement is not subject to amendment or 
modification except by a writing signed by both the Developer and CAWD. 
 
8.   Entire Agreement.   This Reimbursement Agreement contains the entire agreement of 
the parties with respect to matters covered herein, and no other agreement, statement or promise 
made by or to CAWD or Developer by or to anyone that is not contained herein shall be binding 
or valid. 
 
9.   Attorney’s Fees.   In the event of any controversy, claim or dispute relating to this 
Reimbursement Agreement or the breach thereof, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover 
from the other party reasonable expenses, attorney’s fees and costs. 
 
10.  Counterparts.   This Reimbursement Agreement may be executed in two counterparts, 
each of which shall be deemed an original, but both of which shall be deemed to constitute one 
and the same instrument. 
 
           IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Developer and CAWD, each by their authorized 
representatives, have executed this Reimbursement Agreement on the date first written above. 
 
 
CARMEL AREA WASTEWATER DISTRICT         CLEAR PEAK DEVELOPMENT LLC 
 
 
By:__________________________                           By:____________________________                                 
Barbara Buikema, General Manager                                                                              
                                                                                     Its:___________________________ 
 
Date:______________                                                Date:________________ 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
By:____________________________ 
               District Counsel 
 
 
            
 

              117



RESOLUTION 2019‐11 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE GENERAL MANAGER TO ENTER INTO A 

CONTRACT WITH SRT CONSULTANTS FOR EVALUATION OF SEPTEMBER RANCH 

POTABLE WATER SERVICE AND APPROVE A REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN 

THE DISTRICT AND CLEAR PEAK TO COVER COST OF SRT CONSULTANTS PROPOSAL 

AND DISTRICT COSTS 

‐oOo‐ 

WHEREAS, the District authorized the General Manager to engage a consultant for an  

analysis of the September Ranch Potable Water Services in September 2018 to study the 

possibility of the District taking over its operations, and 

WHEREAS, the District received two proposals and has selected the lowest cost 

proposal from SRT Consultants; and 

WHEREAS, District’s counsel has prepared a Reimbursement Agreement between the 

District and Clear Peak to cover the cost of the SRT Consultants proposal; and 

WHEREAS, the District must execute two agreements:  

 SRT Consultants dated January 29, 2019 in the amount of $67,000 utilizing the 

District’s standard contract template; and 

 Reimbursement Agreement between the District and Clear Peak relating to 

recovery of costs for feasibility studies related to proposed provision of water 

services to September Ranch by the District; and 

WHEREAS, the Board is convinced that the addition of these two tasks will benefit the 

District by its analysis of the September Ranch Potable Water Service project. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Carmel Area 

Wastewater District, hereby authorizes the General Manager to enter into a contract with SRT 

Consultants to analyze September Ranch Potable Water Service and to sign Reimbursement 

Agreement with Clear Peak for costs of September Ranch Project. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the Carmel 

Area Wastewater District duly held on February 28, 2019 by the following vote: 

AYES:  BOARD MEMBERS: 

NOES: BOARD MEMBERS: 

              118



ABSENT:  BOARD MEMBERS: 

 

            ________________________________________ 

            President of the Board 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

________________________________________ 

Secretary to the Board 

              119



STAFF REPORT 
 
 
To:  Board of Directors 
 
From:  Barbara Buikema, General Manager 
 
Date:  February 28, 2019 
 
Subject: GM Vacation Schedule & Implementation of 

Acting Pay for Exempt Employees 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that the Board pass a motion authorizing the implementation of the policy 
“Acting Pay for Exempt Employees” for the three weeks that the General Manager takes 
vacation time through June 30, 2019. 
 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
During the Week of February 4 – 8 Rachel Lather, Principal Engineer performed as Acting 
General Manager in my absence.  She did an excellent job. 
 
I plan to take additional vacation time as follows: 
 
April 1 – 5, 2019  Acting GM – Chris Foley 
 
June 3 – 4, 2019  Acting GM – Patrick Treanor 
 
I have been asked by employees if they are eligible for Out-of-Class pay for the week they 
perform as Acting General Manager. 
 
According to our policy (approved August 2017) it must be approved by the full Board prior to 
implementation.  Given that the policy should have been implemented prior to my February 
vacation period I am asking the Board to bypass the Salary & Benefits Committee’s approval.  
My recommendation is that for each week I am on vacation that the “Acting GM” receive an 
additional 5% salary for that week.  I am asking that Rachel Lather be awarded 5% after-the-fact 
because the oversight was strictly an administrative oversight. 
 
 

              120



 1

Human Resources Topic No.: 

 Topic:  Acting Pay for Exempt  
           Employees 

 Date:  August 2017 

 
Acting Pay for Exempt Employees 
 
The purpose of the Carmel Area Wastewater District’s (CAWD) Acting Pay for 
Exempt Employees is to provide a vehicle to appropriately compensate those 
exempt employees who are asked by the General Manager to work outside their 
job classification, for a work period totaling more than eighty hours; and, are 
satisfactorily working excessive hours or doing excessive work, beyond the work 
required of the employee’s regular position. 
 
This policy applies to exempt employees who are asked by the General Manager 
to work outside of their job classification or to take on additional duties of another 
exempt employee, for a work period totaling more than eighty hours. 
 
In order to recognize the employee’s effort, the General Manager has the 
discretion to pay an employee satisfactorily working outside of class, Acting Pay 
of up to 12% above the employee’s current pay level.  When to award Acting Pay 
and the amount of Acting Pay (up to 12%) is fully within the discretion of the 
General Manager. 
 
Exempt employee will only be eligible for Acting Pay under the following 
circumstances: 
 

 It must be approved by the General Manager in advance. 
 

 Employees eligible for Acting Pay will be considered based on their skills 
and ability to satisfactorily perform the work.  The decision to grant Acting 
Pay will not be based on seniority. 
 

 The General Manager will make the final determination on the percentage 
of Acting Pay offered.  The determination will be based on the nature of 
the work required. 
 

 Acting Pay will only be awarded for full 8-hour increments or days. 
 

 Should the employee use sick leave, vacation, or administrative leave at 
any time while performing their duties out of class they will not be eligible 
for Acting Pay. 

 

              121



 2

 Should an observed District holiday fall within the assignment to an out of 
class position the employee will not be eligible for Acting Pay on that day  

 
 Any recommendation to implement Acting Pay must first be approved by 

the Salary & Benefits Committee and then by the full Board. 
 

              122



STAFF REPORT 
 
 
To:  Board of Directors 
 
From:  Barbara Buikema, General Manager 
 
Date:  February 28, 2019 
 
Subject: Selection of Topics for CAWD Spring 2019 

Newsletter 
 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
Staff is requesting Board input for topics to the District’s Spring 2019 newsletter.   The spring 
issue is a four-page issue and includes the annual Prop 218 notice. 
 
Suggested topics for the upcoming issue include: 
 

 CRFree Project and CAWD 
 Hatton Canyon project and grant funding 
 Micro-plastics 
 New Principal Engineer – Rachel Lather 
 Safety spotlight  
 Microorganism of the Month 
 Budget graphs 
 Sidebar – if you see something, say something.  Call CAWD first. 
 Disposal of flushable wipes in the trash, not the toilet 

 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
The 2018-19 Budget provides $28,500 for two newsletters and a Prop 218 Notice – this includes 
consultant services for design and writing, printing, postage, and delivery.   The Spring 2019 
issue is the second of the two issues planned and is included in the approved newsletter budget.   

              123



STAFF REPORT  
 

 

To:  Board of Directors 

 

From:  Edward Waggoner,  

Operations Superintendent 

 

Date:  February 28, 2019 

 

Subject: Carmel Area Wastewater District 2018 Annual NPDES Discharge 

Monitoring Summary Report. 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
Receive Report-Informational only; no action required 
 
DISCUSSION  

 

Following Order No. R3-2014-0012 and NPDES No. CA0047996 in Table E-9: 

Monitoring Periods and Reporting Schedule. An Annual Summary and Ocean Outfall 

Report including an Annual Biosolids Report must be submitted to the State of 

California Central Coast Regional Water Quality Control Board by February 1st by the 

following calendar year of sampling and inspections. 

 

The following attachments of the Monitoring Summary, Ocean Outfall Inspection and 

Biosolids Report meets General Monitoring and Reporting Requirements for 40 C.F.R. 

503 and 23 CCR 15 for the year 2018.   

 

FUNDING  

 

N/A-Informational item only 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

              124



Date: January 31, 2019 

Division of Water Quality 
C/O DMR Processing Center 
P.O. Box 100 
Sacramento, CA  95812-1000 

Facility Name:  Carmel Area Wastewater District 

Address (mailing): P.O. Box 221428, Carmel, CA  93922 

Address (shipping): Highway One & Carmel River, Carmel, CA  93923 

Contact Person: Edward Waggoner 

Job Title: Operations Superintendent 

Phone Number: 831-624-1249 

WDR/NPDES Order Number: R3-2014-0012 (NPDES PERMIT – CA0047996) 

WDID Number: 3 270101001 

Type of Report (circle one): Monthly Quarterly Semi-Annual  Annual 

Month(s)  (circle applicable Jan        Feb        March        Apr        May        Jun 

Months*): Jul        Aug        Sept Oct         Nov        Dec 

*Annual Reports (circle the first month of the reporting period)

Year: 2018 

 

              125



Violation(s):    _____ No (there are no violations to report) _X  Yes 
If Yes is marked (complete a-g): 
 
 
a)  Parameter(s) in Violation: Total Coliform Bacteria Effluent Limitations for Instantaneous 
Maximum and Total Coliform Bacteria Average Monthly.   
 
 
b)  Section(s) of WDR/NPDES Violated: Section III Effluent Limitations and Discharge 
Specifications-A.1a Table 4. 
 
 
c)  Reported Value(s): August 13th value of 17,329 MPN/100 mL, August 14th value of 12,033 
MPN/100 mL, August 20th value of >24,196 MPN/100 mL, August 21st value of >24,196 
MPN/100 mL, August 27th value of >24,196 MPN/100. 
 
Monthly Average exceedance for August value of 1,685.3 MPN/100 mL. 
 
d)  WDR/NPDES Limit Condition: Total Coliform Instantaneous Maximum of 10,000 MPN/100 
mL and Total Coliform Bacteria Month Average of 230 MPN/100 mL.    
 
e)  Dates of Violation(s): August 13th, August 14th, August 20th, August 21st, August 27th for 
Instantaneous Maximums and August 31st for the Monthly Average.    
 
f)  Explanation of Cause(s): Carmel Area Wastewater District Staff is upgrading the Aeration 
Blower Control System with the new Supervisory Control And Data Acquisition System. During 
this upgrade process staff needed to shut down the blower equipment supplying air to the 
aeration basins for time periods of 15 minutes up to 2 hours. These shut downs caused the 
treatment plant to fall out of the Nitrification/Denitrification process repeatedly during the month 
of August. This caused a large amount of Nitrite to form in the secondary effluent flow to the 
Microfiltration/Reverse Osmosis System which elevated the chlorine demand on the Brine Reject 
Line going to the plant’s ocean outfall line. 
 
All chlorine analyzer systems were indicating normal chlorine residuals of above 1 mg/L.    
 
g)  Corrective Action(s): (1) Staff continued to increase the Sodium Hypochlorite dosage until 
the Total Coliform Counts came into an acceptable level. (2) Staff finished the main Blower and 
SCADA upgrades as quickly as possible to allow the plant to operate in the proper 
Nitrification/Denitrification modes of operation. Once the plant started Nitrifying the Nitrite 
concentrations lower to an acceptable level and reduce the chlorine demand on the effluent brine 
flows. (3) Staff doubled the detention time in the chlorinated Brine Reject Line by adding two 
serpentine runs of 4-inch Schedule 80 PVC piping before the chlorine analyzers.  
 
 
 
   

              126



In accordance with the Standard Provisions and Reporting Requirements, I certify under penalty 
of law that this document and all attachments were prepared under my direction or supervision 
following a system designed to assure that qualified personnel properly gather and evaluate the 
information submitted.  Based on my knowledge of the person(s) who manage the system or 
those directly responsible for data gathering, the information submitted is, to the best of my 
knowledge and belief, true, accurate, and complete.  I am aware that there are significant 
penalties for submitting false information, including the possibility of fine and imprisonment. 
 
If you have any questions or require additional information, please contact me at the number 
provided above. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Edward Waggoner  
Operations Superintendent  

              127



              128



              129



              130



              131



              132



              133



              134



              135



              136



              137



              138



              139



              140



              141



              142



              143



              144



              145



              146



              147



              148



              149



              150



              151



              152



              153



              154



              155



              156



              157



              158



              159



              160



              161



              162



 
 

 

 

              163



 
 

 

 

              164



 
 

 

 

              165



 
 

 

 

              166



 
 

 

 

              167



 
 

 

 

              168



 
 

 

 

              169



 
 

              170



STAFF REPORT  
 

 

To:  Board of Directors 

 

From:  Edward Waggoner,  

Operations Superintendent 

 

Date:  February 28, 2019 

 

Subject: Carmel Area Wastewater District 2018 Annual Reclamation Discharge 

Monitoring Summary Report. 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
Receive Report-Informational only; no action required 
 
DISCUSSION  

 

Following Order No.93-72: Monitoring Periods and Reporting Schedule. An Annual 

Summary Report must be submitted to the State of California Central Coast Regional 

Water Quality Control Board by February 1st by the following calendar year of sampling 

and inspections. 

 

The following attachments of the Monitoring Summary Report meets General 

Monitoring and Reporting Requirements for Water Quality Control Plan, Central Coast 

Basin and California Code of Regulations, Title 22, Water Reclamation Criteria for the 

year 2018.   

 

FUNDING  

 

N/A-Informational item only 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

              171



              172



              173



ORDER # 93-72

Reclamation
(Tertiary)

2018 Annual

Operations & Compliance Report

Carmel Area Wastewater District

              174



Subject:

Edward Waggoner
Operations Superintendent 

Respectfully Submitted,

CARMEL AREA WASTEWATER DISTRICT

Section Six (6): Statement concerning the laboratories used by Carmel Area Wastewater District to monitor 
compliance with effluent limits and summary of performance as required be section B, General 
Monitoring Requirements.

Section Three (3): Discussion of compliance record and corrective actions taken or requested to bring discharge into 
full compliance.

Section Four (4): List of current operating personnel and their grade of certification.
Section Five (5): Carmel Area Wastewater District's Operation & Maintenance Manual status discussion.

Section Two (2): Graphical summary of the monitoring data obtained during the previous year -2018

San Luis Obispo, CA 93401-7906
centralcoast@waterboards.ca.gov

2018 Carmel Area Wastewater District Annual Reclamation Operations & Compliance Report - 
ORDER #93-72

Dear To Whom It May Concern,

Enclosed please find the Carmel Area Wastewater District's Annual Report submitted as requested by the California 
Regional Water Quality Control Board and the State Water Resources Control Board

Section One (1): Tabular summary of the monitoring data obtained during the previous year -2018

895 Aerovista Place, Suite 101

Friday, January 18, 2019

California Regional Water Quality Control Board
Central Coast Region

              175



Tabular summary of the monitoring data 

SECTION      
ONE

              176



Reclaimed Flows BOD Total Suspended Solids
Sett. Solids

CL2 Residual Removal Efficiency Turbidity pH
Total Coliforms  

TDS

Month Total Flow Daily Avg
Secondary 

Effluent mg/l
Reclamation 

mg/l
Reclamation 

lbs/day
Secondary 

Effluent mg/l Reclamation mg/l
Reclamation 

lb/day Reclamation ml/l

Reclamation     
mg/l             Min   

Max BOD % T.S.S. % 

Tertiary 
NTU's        

Avg     Max
Reclamation 

Units mpn / 100 ml mg/l

Jan 37.730 1.217 13.8 3.42 34.71 19.6 0.17 1.77 <0.1 6.2 8.2 75.2 99.1 0.03 0.04 7.6 5.6 769

Feb 28.892 1.032 15.0 3.93 33.81 23.6 0.34 2.89 <0.1 6.1 10.5 73.8 98.6 0.02 0.03 7.5 <1.0

Mar 12.671 0.409 10.6 2.47 8.41 12.6 0.20 0.68 <0.1 8.6 12.2 76.7 98.4 0.02 0.05 7.1 <1.0

Apr 15.717 0.714 10.8 1.93 11.51 12.0 0.13 0.76 <0.1 8.1 12.4 82.0 98.9 0.02 0.03 7.2 <1.0 324

May 32.028 1.217 18.0 1.52 15.39 16.0 0.17 1.77 <0.1 9.4 12.5 91.6 98.9 0.02 0.03 7.2 <1.0

Jun 29.270 0.976 19.3 1.37 11.12 23.6 0.13 1.06 <0.1 6.5 9.7 92.9 99.5 0.01 0.03 7.3 1.1

Jul 31.673 1.022 14.3 1.71 14.57 30.5 0.26 2.25 <0.1 7.5 9.1 88.0 99.1 0.02 0.03 7.3 <1.0 215

Aug 22.753 0.734 20.0 2.45 15.01 23.6 0.02 0.12 <0.1 6.2 9.6 87.7 99.9 0.02 0.03 7.2 <1.0

Sep 29.087 0.970 13.7 3.39 27.44 21.1 0.47 3.83 <0.1 7.8 11.2 75.2 97.8 0.01 0.03 7.1 1.0

Oct 28.693 0.926 8.2 2.46 18.97 22.4 0.52 3.98 <0.1 9.6 11.2 70.0 97.7 0.01 0.03 7.2 <1.0 241

Nov 28.880 0.963 12.6 1.95 15.63 14.4 0.11 0.91 <0.1 9.5 11.5 84.6 99.2 0.02 0.03 7.4 <1.0

Dec 30.120 0.972 9.2 1.09 8.84 10.8 0.10 0.84 <0.1 9.3 11.1 88.1 99.0 0.02 0.02 7.2 <1.0

Reclamation

TABULAR SUMMARY OF 2018 NPDES REPORTABLE DATA

              177



SECTION      
TWO

Graphical summary of the monitoring data

              178



Carmel Area Wastewater District

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

mg/l 

Reclamation Influent / Effluent BOD
2018

Secondary Effluent mg/l

Reclamation mg/l

Reclamation lbs/day

              179



              180



              181



              182



              183



              184



              185



              186



              187



              188



              189



              190



              191



              192



              193



STAFF REPORT  
 

 

To:  Board of Directors 

 

From:  Edward Waggoner,  

Operations Superintendent 

 

Date:  February 28, 2019 

 

Subject: Carmel Area Wastewater District 2018 Annual EPA Biosolids Discharge 

Monitoring Summary Report. 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
Receive Report-Informational only; no action required 
 
DISCUSSION  

 

Following 40 CFR 503.18: Monitoring Periods and Reporting Schedule. A Biosolids 

Annual Summary Report must be submitted to the Environmental Protection Agency 

by February 1st by the following calendar year of sampling and inspections. 

 

The following attachments of the Biosolids Monitoring Summary Report meets General 

Monitoring and Reporting Requirements for Water Quality Control Plan, United States 

Environmental Protection Agency and Code of Federal Regulations, 40 CFR 503.18, 

Publicly Owned Treatment Works, Sewage Sludge Management Criteria for the year 

2018.   

 

FUNDING  

 

N/A-Informational item only 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

              194



Page 1 of 3

EPA's sewage sludge regulations require certain publicly owned treatment works (POTWs) and Class I sewage sludge management facilities to submit to a Sewage Sludge (Biosolids) Annual Report (see 40 CFR 503.18
(https://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?node=pt40.32.503&rgn=div5#se40.32.503_118), 503.28 (https://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?node=pt40.32.503&rgn=div5#se40.32.503_128), 503.48 (https://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-
bin/text-idx?node=pt40.32.503&rgn=div5#se40.32.503_148)). Facilities that must submit a Sewage Sludge (Biosolids) Annual Report include POTWs with a design f low rate equal to or greater than one million gallons per
day, POTWs that serve 10,000 people or more, Class I Sludge Management Facilities (as def ined by 40 CFR 503.9 (https://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?node=pt40.32.503&rgn=div5#se40.32.503_19)), and facilities
otherwise required to f ile this report (e.g., permit condition, enforcement action, state law). This is the electronic form for Sewage Sludge (Biosolids) Annual Report f ilers to use if  they are located in one of the states,
tribes, or territories (https://www.epa.gov/npdes/npdes-state-program-information) where EPA administers the Federal biosolids program.

For the purposes of this form, the term 'sewage sludge (https://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?node=pt40.32.503&rgn=div5#se40.32.503_19)' also refers to the material that is commonly referred to as 'biosolids'. EPA
does not have a regulatory def inition for biosolids but this material is commonly referred to as sewage sludge that is placed on, or applied to the land to use the benef icial properties of the material as a soil amendment,
conditioner, or fertilizer. EPA's use of the term 'biosolids' in this form is to conf irm that information about benef icially used sewage sludge (a.k.a. biosolids) should be reported on this form.

Please note that EPA may contact you after you submit this report for more information regarding your sewage sludge management program.

Facility Information

Program Information

Treatment Processes

Analytical Methods

Sludge Management - Land Application

UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY
WASHINGTON, DC 20460

BIOSOLIDS ANNUAL REPORT

FORM
Approved OMB No.

2040-0004

Facility Name: CARMEL WWTP

Please select at least one of the following options pertaining to your obligation to submit a Sewage Sludge (Biosolids) Annual Report in compliance with 40 CFR part 503. The facility is:
a POTW with a design f low rate equal to or greater than one million gallons per day
a POTW that serves 10,000 people or more

In the reporting period, did you manage your sewage sludge or biosolids using any of the following management practices: land application, surface disposal, or incineration?  YES
 NO

If your facility is a POTW, please provide the estimated total amount of sewage sludge produced at your facility for the reporting period (in dry metric tons). If your facility is not a POTW, please
provide the estimated total amount of biosolids produced at your facility for the reporting period (in dry metric tons).
260.3

Reporting Period Start Date: 01/01/2018 Reporting Period End Date: 12/31/2018

Processes to Significantly Reduce Pathogens (PSRP):
Anaerobic Digestion

Processes to Further Reduce Pathogens (PFRP):

Physical Treatment Options:
Preliminary Operations (e.g., sludge grinding, degritting, blending)
Thickening (e.g., gravity and/or f lotation thickening, centrifugation, belt f ilter press, vacuum f ilter)

Other Processes to Manage Sewage Sludge:
Methane or Biogas Capture and Recovery

Did you use any analytical methods to analyze sewage sludge in the reporting period?  YES  NO

Analytical Methods
EPA Method 6020 - Arsenic (ICP-MS)
EPA Method 6020 - Cadmium (ICP-MS)
EPA Method 6020 - Chromium (ICP-MS)
EPA Method 6020 - Copper (ICP-MS)
EPA Method 6020 - Lead (ICP-MS)
EPA Method 7471 - Mercury (CVAA)
EPA Method 6020 - Molybdenum (ICP-MS)
EPA Method 6020 - Nickel (ICP-MS)
EPA Method 6020 - Selenium (ICP-MS)
EPA Method 6020 - Zinc (ICP-MS)
EPA Method 6020 - Beryllium (ICP-MS)
EPA Method 351.2 - Total Kjeldahl Nitrogen
EPA Method 350.1 - Ammonia Nitrogen
Standard Method 2540 - Total Solids
Standard Method 2540 - Volatile Solids
EPA Method 9045 - pH (> 7% solids)
Standard Method 2550 - Temperature

ID: 001

              195



Page 2 of 3

Amount: 260.3

Management Practice Detail: Distribution and Marketing - Compost

Bulk or Bag/Container: Bulk

Handler, Preparer, or Applier Type: Off-Site Third-Party Handler or Applier

NPDES ID of handler:

Facility Information:
Liberty Composting, Inc.
12421 Holloway Rd, P. O. Box 5,
Lost Hills, CA 93249

Contact Information:
Melody Ray
Compliance Manager
661-797-2914

Pathogen Class: Class B

Sewage Sludge or Biosolids Pathogen Reduction Options:
Class B-Alternative 2 PSRP 3: Anaerobic Digestion

Sewage Sludge or Biosolids Vector Attraction Reduction Options:
Option 1 - Volatile Solids Reduction

Did the facility land apply bulk sewage sludge when one or more pollutants in the sewage sludge exceeded 90 percent or more of any of the cumulative pollutant loading rates in Table 2 of 40
CFR 503.13?

 YES  NO  UNKNOWN

Monitoring Data

Compliance Monitoring Periods

INSTRUCTIONS: Pollutants, pathogen densities, and vector attraction reduction must be monitored when sewage sludge or biosolids are applied to the land. Please use the following section to report
monitoring data for the land application conducted by you or your facility in the reporting period for this SSUID. These monitoring data should be representative of the sewage sludge or biosolids
that was applied to land during the compliance monitoring period for this SSUID (40 CFR 503.8(a) (http://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?node=pt40.32.503&rgn=div5#se40.32.503_18)). All pollutant
monitoring data should be reported in milligrams per kilogram (mg/kg), dry weight basis. EPA will be using these data to demonstrate compliance with EPA's land application requirements (40 CFR
503, Subpart B).

INSTRUCTIONS: Please use the table below to identify the start date and end date for each compliance monitoring period. The number of compliance monitoring periods reported will correspond to
the required frequency of monitoring (monthly, quarterly, semi-annually, or annually). For example, if  monthly monitoring is required, you should report 12 compliance monitoring periods. The
required frequency is determined by the number of metric tons (dry weight basis) of  sewage sludge or biosolids land applied in the reporting period for this SSUID (40 CFR 503.16
(http://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?node=pt40.32.503&rgn=div5#se40.32.503_116)).

Compliance Monitoring Event No. 1 Compliance Monitoring Period Start Date: 01/01/2018 Compliance Monitoring Period End Date: 12/31/2018

Do you have analytical results to report for this monitoring period?  YES  NO

Are you reporting maximum pollutant concentrations that are equivalent to the monthly average pollutant concentrations for this compliance monitoring event? [For example, this will be
the case if you only collected and analyzed one sample of sewage sludge or biosolids for this compliance monitoring period.]

 YES  NO

Maximum Concentration Data for All Sewage Sludge or Biosolids Applied to Land 

Sewage Sludge or Biosolids Parameter Value Qualifier Parameter Concentration (mg/kg, dry-weight basis) If No Data, Select One Of The Following

Arsenic = 1.9

Cadmium = 2

Copper = 600

Lead = 11

Mercury = 0.5

Molybdenum = 9.5

Nickel = 18

Selenium = 4.8

Zinc = 1700

This section summarizes the maximum pollutant concentrations in the biosolids or sewage sludge that was applied to land during the compliance monitoring period for this SSUID. In accordance with
40 CFR 503.13(a) (http://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?node=pt40.32.503&rgn=div5#se40.32.503_113), EPA's regulations prohibit land application of bulk sewage sludge or sewage sludge sold or
gave away sewage sludge in a bag or other container when one or more sewage sludge pollutant concentrations in the sewage sludge exceed a land application ceiling pollutant limit (Table 1 of 40
CFR 503.13 (http://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?node=pt40.32.503&rgn=div5#se40.32.503_113)). EPA will compare the pollutant concentrations in this section against the ceiling concentration limits
in Table 1 of 40 CFR 503.13 (http://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?node=pt40.32.503&rgn=div5#se40.32.503_113) to identify noncompliance events. All pollutant monitoring data should be reported in
milligrams per kilogram (mg/kg), dry weight basis.

Please only select a "No Data Indicator Code" if  you are reporting no data for the sampling period or particular parameter.

Monthly Average Pollutant Concentration Data for All Sewage Sludge or Biosolids Applied to Land 
This section summarizes the monthly average pollutant concentrations in the biosolids or sewage sludge that was applied to land during the compliance monitoring period for this SSUID. All pollutant
monitoring data should be reported in milligrams per kilogram (mg/kg), dry weight basis.

              196



Page 3 of 3

Sludge Management - Surface Disposal

Sludge Management - Incineration

Sludge Management - Other Management Practice

Additional Information

Certif ication Information

Sewage Sludge or Biosolids Parameter Value Qualifier Parameter Concentration (mg/kg, dry-weight basis) If No Data, Select One Of The Following

Arsenic = 1.9

Cadmium = 2

Copper = 600

Lead = 11

Mercury = 0.5

Nickel = 18

Selenium = 4.8

Zinc = 1700

Sewage Sludge or Biosolids Parameter Value Qualifier Parameter Concentration (mg/kg, dry-weight basis) If No Data, Select One Of The Following

Sewage Sludge or Biosolids Parameter Value Qualifier Parameter Concentration (mg/kg, dry-weight basis) If No Data, Select One Of The Following

Total Nitrogen (TKN plus Nitrate-Nitrite) = 71000

Report the average concentration (mg/kg, dry weight basis) of  Total Nitrogen (TKN plus Nitrate-Nitrite, as N) in the sewage sludge or biosolids that was applied to land during the compliance
monitoring period for this SSUID.

Please enter any additional information that you would like to provide in the comment box below.

 Carmel Area Wastewater District contracts with Liberty Composting to haul away and compost all Biosolids generate at the WWTP.
Liberty Composting contact information is as follows: 12421 Holloway Road, P.O. Box 5, Lost Hills, CA 93249. Liberty Composting
Annual Report for CAWWD is one of the additional attachments to this report.

Additional Attachments

Name Created Date Size

Liberty_Composting_Carmel_Annual_Report.pdf 01/17/2019 6:29 PM 507.09 KB

I certify under penalty of  law that this document and all attachments were prepared under my direction or supervision in accordance with a system designed to assure that qualif ied personnel properly gathered
and evaluated the information submitted. Based on my inquiry of  the person or persons who manage the system, or those persons directly responsible for gathering the information, the information submitted is,
to the best of  my knowledge and belief , true, accurate, and complete. I have no personal knowledge that the information submitted is other than true, accurate, and complete. I am aware that there are signif icant
penalties for submitting false information, including the possibility of  f ine and imprisonment for knowing violations. Signing an electronic document on behalf  of  another person is subject to criminal, civil,
administrative, or other lawful action.

Certified By: Edward L. Waggoner (CAL047996)

Certified On: 01/29/2019 12:09 PM

              197



 
STAFF REPORT 
 

 

To:    Board of Directors 

 

From:    Barbara Buikema, General Manager 

 

Date:    January 31, 2019 

 

Subject:  Pebble Beach Community Services District – Regular Board Meeting 

December 7, 2018 

 

 

DISCUSSION 

 

Agenda items from the January 25, 2019 meeting that are of specific interest to this 

District: 

 

 Total cash balance at the end of December 2018 was $20.2M; of that amount, 

$10.6M was designated for Capital Acquisition and Outlay Reserves.  Property 

taxes comprise roughly 85% of District revenues with user fees making up 12%. 

 

 The December 2018 Cash Basis Budget showed total revenues at 43.5% and total 

expenditures at 14.9%  

 

 The Board approved a contract with Hayashi & Wayland Accounting and 

Consulting, LLP to perform the District’s annual financial audit for three years 

2018‐19 through 2020‐21. 

 

 Forest Lake Reservoir held 86 MG (million gallons) of recycled water or 75% of 

permitted capacity.  Current storage volume is 12% above the historic average of 

77 MG. 

 

 Total irrigation water demand for the 2018 calendar year through December was 

986 AF (acre feet).  Total demand for the calendar year is 1% above the 5‐year 

average of 983 AF and 1% above the 23‐year average annual usage of 978 AF.  

The months of November and December reflect a net storage increase of 

approximately 12 and 30 MG respectively at Forest Lake Reservoir. 

 

              198



 Average daily wastewater flow of 342,000 GPD was measured in December at 

the PBCSD‐Carmel gate.  This represents 30% of the total flow at the CAWD 

treatment facility.  The measured PBCSD flow was 28% below the five‐year 

average of 478,000 GPD for the month of December; the CAWD total flow was 

19% below the five‐year average of 1,404,000 GPD for December.   

 

 The three alternative source water projects were shut down on November 21, 

2018 due to recent storm events.  Total year‐to‐date production for the 2018 

calendar year through December 31, 2018 is 41 acre‐feet.   

 

 The Board authorized the purchase of server hardware and software for the 

SCADA System Improvement Project, Phase 1 for an amount not to exceed $80K. 

 

 Average daily wastewater flows measured in million gallons per day (MG) 

show: 

 

MONTH  TOTAL  CAWD FLOW  PBCSD FLOW  PBCSD 

July ‐ 18  36.645  25.589  11.056  30.171% 

Aug – 18  36.346  25.482  10.864  29.890% 

Sept ‐ 18  33.219  23.073  10.146  30.543% 

Oct ‐ 18  32.829  22.915  9.914  30.199% 

Nov‐18  33.762  23.837  9.925  29.397% 

Dec‐18  35.452  24.846  10.606  29.917% 

Total  208.253  145.742  62.511  30.016% 

 

              199



STAFF REPORT 
 

 

To:    Board of Directors 

 

From:    B. Buikema, General Manager 

 

Date:    February 28, 2019 

 

Subject:  Summary of Monterey County Treasurer Report dated 12‐31‐18 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

No action required – this is informational only 

 

 

DISCUSSION 

 

During the October – December quarter, the selloff in equity markets pushed investors 

to seek the relative safety of U.S. Treasury obligations, pushing yields lower.  Interest 

rates with maturities greater than 1‐year fell sharply, while short term rates moved up 

slightly. This resulted in an inverted yield curve at the quarter end, with the 1‐year 

Treasury yielding more than a 5‐year Treasury. As was widely expected, the Federal 

Reserve raised the federal funds target rate by 25 basis points (0.25%) for the fourth 

time in 2018 at its December meeting. The U.S. economy is experiencing a strong labor 

market, adding 762K total jobs in the second quarter, a deceleration of inflation to just 

below the Fed’s 2% target and positive contributions from business investment, 

consumer spending, and federal, state, and local government spending.  Potential 

headwinds exist in the form of geopolitical risks, tariffs, slower housing market 

momentum, contracting oil supply and rising interest rates.   

 

PORTFOLIO CHARACTERISTICS 

  06‐30‐18  09‐30‐18  12‐31‐18 

Total Assets  $1,560,422,623.40  $1,331,217,570.21  $1,528,686,820.37 

Market Value  $1,551,265,646.11  $1,323,210,566.84  $1,518,307,204.45 

Days to Maturity  233  222  272 

Yield  1.63%  1.84%  2.08% 

Estimated Earnings  $6,477,652.90  $6,517,874.72  $7,409,471.25 

 

              200



The Monterey County Treasurer’s portfolio consists of fixed income investments, all of 

which are authorized by the State of California Government Code 53601. 

 

PORTFOLIO ASSET COMPOSITION 12-31-18 
Corporate Notes  15.2% 

Overnight Liquid Assets  25.3% 

US Treasuries  29.8% 

Federal Agencies  13.4% 

Commercial Paper  8.2% 

Negotiable CDs  4.4% 

Supranationals  3.1% 

Municipal Bonds  0.0% 

Asset Backed Securities  0.6% 

 

The County Treasury continues to perform comparatively to portfolio benchmarks this 

quarter.    The County investment strategy continues to focus on capturing relative 

value while remaining cautious.    

 

Future Strategy:  The Treasurer has 72% of the portfolio invested in maturities under 

one year and 27% invested in the 1‐3 year maturity range.  In the current interest rate 

environment of rising rates, holding shorter‐term securities allows the County to 

capture higher yields as maturities are reinvested.  We will continue to manage the 

portfolio under the established tenets of safety and liquidity while seeking to maximize 

the rate of return.  

 

The investment portfolio was in compliance with all applicable provisions of state law 

and the adopted Investment Policy and contained sufficient liquidity to meet all 

projected outflows over the next six months. 

 

 

 

Note:  The full Monterey County Treasurer Report is available at: 

www.co.monterey.ca.us/taxcollector/Treasury_Main.html 

              201


	01.A. Board Packet Cover
	02. List of Common Acronyms 02-12-19
	04. Regular Board Meeting Minutes 01-31-19
	05. Special Board Meeting Minutes -Strategy Study Session 01-22-19
	06. H&W Bank Statement Review-Dec 2018
	07. CAWD Cash Receipts & Disbursements-Jan 2019
	08. CAWD Disbursements-Jan 2019
	09. RECL Disbursements-Jan 2019
	10. Financial Statements & Supp Schedules-Jan 2019
	11.A Collections Jan 19-Monthly Report
	11.B Collections Jan 19-Cleaning Map
	12. Treatment Facility Ops-Nov-Dec 2018 & January 2019 January
	13. Lab & Environmental Compliance -Staff Report Lab - Jan 2019
	14. Operatons - Staff Report- Jan 2019
	15. Safety & Regulatory Compliance Report - Feb 2019
	16. Maintenance Staff Report- February 2019
	17. Principal Engineer Staff Report -Feb 2019
	18. Implementation Plan
	19.A. Mainsaver Purchasing Contract Amendment 02-28-19
	19.B. RES 2018-35 Mainsaver Purchasing & Mobile Implementation-$60,100
	19.C. RESOLUTION 2019-07 Mainsaver Amendment-$6K
	20.A. Engineering & Programming Contract Amend for Informative Controls- Staff Report February 2019
	20.B. RESOLUTION 2018-42 Informative Controls Automation Design $150k
	20.C. RESOLUTION 2019-08 Informative Controls Contract Amendment-$50K
	21.A. Carmel Valley Manor Reimbursement Resolution -Staff Report 02-28-19
	21.B. Carmel Valley Manor Feasibility Study 2018
	21.C. Resolution 2019-09 Intent To Reimburse Expenditures Carmel Valley Manor 02-28-19-$5M
	22.A. Corona Road Reimbursement Amendment -Staff Report 02-28-19
	22.B. CAWD_Highlands_Annexation_11X17_FINAL_A
	22.C. Resolution 2019-10 Intent To Reimburse Expenditures Corona Road 02-28-19-$3.5M
	23.A. September Ranch-Staff Reoort 02-28-2019
	23.B. SRT Consultants September Ranch Proposal 01-29-2019
	23.C. September Ranch - Reimbursement Agmt 02-21-2019
	23.D. RES 2019-11 Clear Peak September Ranch
	24.A. GM Vacation Schedule & Implemenation of Acting Pay for Exempt Employees-Staff Report 02-28-19
	24.B. Acting Pay - Exempt Policy 082417
	25. Topics for Spring 2019 Newsletter 02-28-19
	26.A. Treatment Facility Ops-Secondary-NPDES-Staff Report -Annual 2018
	26.B. Treatment Facility Ops Reclamation Discharge - Staff Report Tertiary-NPDES NEW Annual 2018
	Report.PDF
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3

	PACE 2.PDF
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6
	Page 7
	Page 8
	Page 9
	Page 10
	Page 11
	Page 12


	26.C. Treatment Facility Ops EPA Biosolids Discharge-Staff Report-Annual 2018
	27. PBCSD  01-25-19
	28. Summary of Monterey County Treasurer Report -County Investment Report 12-31-18



